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From Chairman’s Desk

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

It has been extremely exciting and an eventful year for your company. We have witnessed a successful year with
growth in the revenue as well as a positive turnaround in the profitability of the company.

Recovering from pandemic-induced contraction, Russian-Ukraine conflict and inflation, the Indian economy is
staging a broad-based recovery across sectors, positioning to ascend to the pre-pandemic growth path in F.Y. 2023.
We are proud to have emerge out of the global crisis with the sustainable growth model and would like to applaud
and appreciate the efforts of everyone in this growth journey.

| take this opportunity to thank everyone for the confidence placed in the company and its brands by the partners,
students, parents, employees and stake holders. This faith in us is instrumental and provides great motivation to
drive the growth strategy forward and create long term value for all our stake holders.

About Indian Economy and Education Segment; As you are aware, Indian economy underwent many structural
changes and governance reforms that has strengthened the fundamentals of our economy and thereby enhancing
its overall efficiency.

The country is also an attracting venue for many global players who is seeking strategic investments owing to the
presence of a vast range of industries and investment avenues. India’s huge population, mostly comprising the youth,
is a strong driver for demand and an ample source of manpower is further driving the global players to come to India.

Today, India is well placed to grow faster in the coming decade and education shall play a significant role in the
development of the nation with the creation and development of talented resources for the industries.

As we know, India has the largest population in the world in the age bracket of 5-24 years with 580 million people,
presenting a huge opportunity in the education sector. India has over 250 million school going students, more than
any other country. Large English- speaking population allows easy delivery of educational services. With almost 27%
of India’s population in the age group of 0-14 years, India’s education sector provides numerous opportunities for
growth.

Government Initiatives: Governments are expected to develop and implement strategies that promote education
and enrolment of students in higher education. High-enrolment in higher education can translate into more skilled
manpower and greater number of job opportunities.

The Government has already taken initiatives such as the National Accreditation Regulatory Authority Bill for Higher
Education, schemes of Revitalising Infrastructure and System in Education (RISE) are helping the government tackle



the prominent challenges faced by the education sector. We believe that the National Education Policy (NEP) will be
fully implemented over the course of this decade and shall have a strong focus on high-quality vocational education.

Undeniably, education plays a crucial role in reducing poverty and inequality and laying a foundation for sustained
economic growth and your company would like to contribute significantly and be part of this growth story.

Further, as you are aware, G-TEC Computer Education Pvt. Ltd. and | have acquired a stake in your company. It is our
passion for education and training which has led to join hands with Sudhakar Sonawane who is equally passionate.
It is our collective desire to create a leading entity in Education and Training.

| would like to thank Sudhakar Sonawane for his invaluable contribution to the company and look forward to his
continuous contribution as JMD of your company. | also take this opportunity to wish Mehroof Manalody the very
best in his recent assignment as MD of your company.

We together seek your continuous support to work on this huge opportunity in Skilling and Training and transform
your company into a leading education and skilling provider. On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
thank you for your continued support, trust and confidence.

Best regards,
Dr. Chenraj Roychand
Chairman



From Managing Director’s desk

Dear Stakeholders,

| am glad to share the performance of your company as we step into the 24 years of ceaseless contribution to the
society by providing quality education and training. It is an honour to be addressing you for the first time and extend
my gratitude to each one of you for your continued support.

During the year under review, the consolidated total revenue was Rs. 855.63 Lakhs as against Rs. 491.62 Lakhs for
the corresponding previous year registering a strong growth of 74%. Further, the total comprehensive consolidated
income for the period was Rs. 130.29 Lakhs /- as against the loss of Rs. 412.34 Lakhs in the corresponding previous
year.

As you go through the report, let me share inputs on IT Industry which has been the major foundation of our products
and services.

The Information Technology Industry continuous to be one of the leading sectors in India and one of the reasons for
its growth has been the strong education system along with the language skills and early adoption of latest
technology. The IT & BPM sector has become one of the most significant growth catalysts for the Indian
economy, contributing significantly to the country’s GDP and public welfare. Indian software product industry is
expected to reach USS 100 billion by 2025 and Indian companies are focusing on investing internationally to expand
their global footprint and enhance their global delivery centres as per the industry reports published in www.ibef.org

India is now prepared for the next phase of growth in its IT revolution as having one of the largest Internet user bases
and the cheapest Internet rates, with more than 50% of the population having access to the internet. This is further
strengthening our opportunities to offer skilled manpower across the Industry.

As the world goes through various transitions across the industry, technological changes in IT shall remain the
significant investment for any industry. Investment in digital technological shall always gain prominence and which
is why Education & Training shall play a major role to support these transitions across industry. It will be imperative
to equip professionals with latest technical skills and this will be a huge growth opportunity.

As India is the favoured destination for IT companies across the globe for its capabilities to deliver potential services
to the clients and the growth can provide significant employment opportunities.

Further, India has the advantage of having a strong education system which has led to a large pool of highly skilled
and educated professionals and this is one of the reasons for IT Industry to be successful. This is where we wish to
emerge as a successful education and training company.

During the last year, your company has exhibited remarkable resilience and with our ability to adapt to the challenges
has allowed your company to emerge much more stronger than ever. Main backstay of your company’s revenue has



always been IT education programs but our efforts have begun to contribute to technical and non-technical
programs.

OUR WAY FORWARD:

Today, as this new era of digital transformation brings in plethora of opportunities for growth. Needless to mention
the digital transformation in education segment is for here to stay. In the coming financial year, as technology and
digital transformation continue to expand its horizons, there shall be continuous demand for skilled manpower
across the industries and various sectors.

With the boost in the economic activity, your company shall continue to look for newer ways to sustainable and
profitable growth in technical and non-technical space of education and training. Your company intends to add new
verticals and programs based on the current technology and innovation.

While looking ahead, we are optimistic of the opportunities coming our way and look forward to share a year with
new milestones.

Before concluding, on behalf of my board of directors, management team, | wish to thank you and look forward to
be part of the continued success of the company.

With the note that Nothing is Impossible, | wish you and your families safety as well as good health.

With warm regards,
Mehroof Manalody
Managing Director



NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 24™ Annual General Meeting of the members of
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited, will be held on Thursday, 20t July, 2023, at 12:15 p.m. (IST) through
Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider, approve and adopt the audited Standalone & Consolidated Financial Statement
of the Company including the audited Balance Sheet as at 315*March, 2023, Statement of Profit and
Loss and Cash flow statement for the year ended together with the reports of the Directors and the
Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane, Joint Managing Director (DIN:
01689700), who is liable to retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Appointment of Mr. Easwaran Subramaniam lyer (DIN: 10072574) as a Non- Executive, Non-
Independent Director of the Company:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 & 161 and all other applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and as per Articles of association of the company, Mr.
Easwaran Subramaniam lyer (DIN: 10072574) who was appointed as an additional director of the
company with effect from April 25, 2023 and who holds office up to the date of the ensuing General
Meeting, upon recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of
Directors, Mr. Easwaran Subramaniam lyer (DIN: 10072574) be and is hereby appointed as a Director
in the category of “Non-executive, Non- Independent Director” of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation and he shall remain as a director unless otherwise decided by the Board.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of
Directors of the Company be and is hereby severally authorized, on behalf of the Company, to do all
acts, deeds, matters and things as deem necessary, proper or desirable and to sign and execute all
necessary documents, applications and returns for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid
resolution along with filing of necessary e-form with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”



by order of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai
Priyanka Pandey

Date:08/06/2023 Company Secretary
ACS: - A61342
Regd. Office:

Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing

Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East Mumbai MH 400051,

Maharashtra, India

Notes:-

Considering the massive outbreak and subsequent reappearance of Covid-19 pandemic, social distancing is the norm
to be followed, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 read together with
circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and clarification circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, 19/2021
dated December 08, 2021, 20/2021 dated December 14, 2021, 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and 10/2022 dated
December 28, 2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted convening the Annual General Meeting
(“AGM” /“Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical
presence of the members at a common venue. Hence, members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through
VC/OVAM.

In accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be
the Registered Office of the Company. Members are requested not to visit Corporate Office/ Registered Office to attend
the AGM.

Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on a poll instead of himself / herself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this
AGM is being held through VC / OAVM, the requirement of physical attendance of members has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for
the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto. However, the Body
Corporates are entitled to appoint their authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM
and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

Brief Profile under sub-regulation (3) of Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations 2015 and in terms of Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India in respect of the Director(s) seeking re-appointment at the 24™ Annual General Meeting
forms part of this notice.



10.

Book Closure:
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, July
13t, 2023 to Thursday, July 20", 2023 (both days inclusive).

As per Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred
only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission
or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for
ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider
converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrar
and Transfer Agents - M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited for assistance in this regard.

To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who have not registered their email addresses are requested to
register the same with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/their Depository Participants, in
respect of shares held in physical/electronic mode, respectively.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address,
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney,
bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc.,
to their Depository Participant in case the shares are held in electronic form and to M/s. Link Intime India
Private Limited, in case the shares are held in physical form.

In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order
of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

Transfer of Unclaimed/Unpaid amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

Members are requested to note that dividends not encashed or remaining unclaimed for a period of 7 (seven)
years from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, shall be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) established by the Central Government. Further, pursuant
to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”) as amended to date, all shares on which
dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to IEPF
Authority as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The Members/Claimants whose shares, unclaimed dividend, and debenture interest amount have been
transferred to IEPF may claim the shares or apply for refund by making an application to IEPF Authority in
Form IEPF 5 (available on www.iepf.gov.in). The Member/Claimant can file only one consolidated claim in a
Financial Year as per the IEPF Rules. Members are requested to contact the Company’s Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent to claim the unclaimed/ unpaid dividends at the following address: M/s. Link Intime India
Private Limited.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change of address immediately to the
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in electronic form must send the
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advice about change in address to their respective Depository Participant only and not to the Company or
the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

Updation of Members’ Details:

The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Act requires
the Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to record additional details of Members, including their
PAN details, email address, bank details for payment of dividend, etc. A form for capturing these additional
details is appended at the end of this Annual Report. Members holding shares in physical form are requested
to submit the filled-in form to the Company or to its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Members holding
shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to their respective Depository Participant.

Nomination Facility: As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as amended, Members holding shares in physical form may file
nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. In respect
of shares held in dematerialized form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository
Participant.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for
inspection by the Members by writing an e-mail to the Ms. Priyanka Pandey (CS) at cs@keerti.org.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual
Report 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and the Annual Report 2022-
23 will also be available on the Company’s website at www.keerti.org, on the website of the Stock Exchanges
National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com, and on the website of Depository.

Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

Shareholders present at the AGM through InstaMeet facility and who have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
through e-Voting facility during the meeting from 12.15 PM (IST) till the expiry of 15 minutes after the AGM
is over. Shareholders who have voted through remote e-voting prior to the AGM will be eligible to
attend/participate in the AGM through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the
meeting.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.



Instructions for Voting through electronics means:

In compliance with Regulation 44, SEBI Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements, 2015, provisions of Section
108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to
exercise their right to vote at the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means (“e-Voting”) and the
items of business as detailed in this Notice may be transacted through e-voting services provided by Link Intime India
Private Limited through instavote.

The Members may cast their votes through instavote (“Remote E-voting”).

Remote e-voting Instructions for Shareholders:

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode can
register directly with the depository or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly from their demat
accounts.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

1. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.nsdl.com either on
a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner"
icon under "Login" which is available under 'IDeAS' section, this will prompt you to enter your existing
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under
Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you
will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2. If you are not vregistered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available
at https://eservices.nsdl.com Select  "Register ~ Online for IDeAS Portal" or click
at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home page
of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your
sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
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wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e.
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and password.

Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for

users to login to Easi / Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System
Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will
have links of e-Voting service provideri.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected
to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available
at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat account number and PAN
No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be
redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their depository participants
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication,
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e.
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form is given below:

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form as on the cut-off date for e-voting
register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

2. Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: -



A. User ID: Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered
with the Company.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated their
PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if
applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / Company
-in DD/MM/YYYY format)

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your
DP/Company.

*Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their
Folio number in ‘D’ above

|E|Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special
Character (@ !#S&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).
|E]CIick “confirm” (Your password is now generated).

3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER'’ tab.
4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.

Cast your vote electronically:

1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.

E-voting page will appear.

3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If
you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be displayed.

If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify
your vote.

I

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-
voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund /
Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority
letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in
PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request
at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 — 4918 6000.




Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
holding securities in demat | sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022- 4886 7000 and 022-2499
mode with NSDL 7000.

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
holding securities in demat | sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free
mode with CDSL No. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password:

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or
both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting website of Link Intime:
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

o Click on‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’
o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address.
Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the
Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. The
password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@ #5&%*), at least one numeral, at
least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No + Folio
Number registered with the Company

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password:



Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password
option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

>

>

>

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the
resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the Member /
beneficial owner as on the cut off date i.e. July 13, 2023.

The facility for e-voting shall also be available during the AGM. Members who have already cast their vote by
remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote at the
AGM. Only those Members who attend the AGM and have not cast their votes through remote e-voting and
are otherwise not barred from doing so will be allowed to vote through the e-voting facility available at the
AGM.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes its Member after the sending of Notice of
the AGM and holds shares as on the cut Notice of the AGM and holds shares as on the cutoff date for voting
i.e. July 13*, 2023, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request to enotices@linkintime.co.in.
However, if he/she is already registered with LIIPL for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing
User ID and password for casting the vote.

Mr. Deep Shukla, Practising Company Secretary (FCS No. 5652 CP. No. 5364) has been appointed as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and ensure that the voting process at the AGM is conducted in
a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through remote e-
voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not
later than forty eight hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total
votes cast in favour/against if any, to the Chairperson or a person authorized in writing, who shall countersign
the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the website of the Company
www.keerti.org and on the website of Linkintime at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and shall also be
communicated to NSE Limited.




Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

|E| Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: -
A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No

e Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
e Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed

by 8 Digit Client ID
e Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the

Company

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN
with the Depository Participant (DP)/

Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company.
|E|Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting).
Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the same on the

device which would be used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully and participate in the
meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on the dedicated number provided to

you in the instruction/ InstaMEET website.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance i.e. on
or before Monday, July 17, 2023 with the company on the cs@keerti.org created for the general meeting.
Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client.
Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.

Other shareholder may ask questions to the panelist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panelist by switching on video mode
and audio of your device.

vk wnN

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name

and serial number for speaking.




Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members
who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

1.  Onthe Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”

2.  Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/
registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on 'Submit'.

3.  After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against”
for voting.

4.  Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares
(which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against'.

5.  After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on
“Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to
change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote.

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote
subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted
through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual
General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through
broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.




s EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013;

ITEM 3: APPOINTMENT OF MR. EASWARAN SUBRAMANIAM IYER (DIN: 10072574) AS A NON- EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Easwaran Subramaniam lyer (DIN: 10072574), as an
Additional Director in the category of Non-Executive, Non Independent Director of the Company with effect from
April 25, 2023, pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, who shall hold the office of Director
up to the date of the ensuing General Meeting.

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, your Board has proposed to re-appoint him
as a Non-Executive, Non Independent Director of the Company.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives except Mr. Easwaran
Subramaniam lyer himself, in any way concerned or interested, in the said resolution. The board recommends the
said resolution to be passed as an ordinary resolution.

Annexure to Notice

Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting

[In pursuance of Clause 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015]

Name of Director Mr. Easwaran Subramaniam lyer | Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang
Sonawane
DIN 10072574 01689700
Date of Birth 01/11/1957 11/03/1973
Actual date of Appointment 25/04/2023 29/04/1999
Expertise in Specific | Overall Experience of 47 years with Business Administration
Functional Area 29 years of Industry Experience and
18+ years of Experience in Academia
Qualification A Double Doctorate in Management BA, MBA

from India and USA along with
M.Phil. MBA, PGDBM, PGDPM, M.
Com, LLB and an Honours Degree in
Commerce

Relationships between | --- -
directors inter-se
List of other Indian Listed | --- -
Limited Companies in which
Directorship held [along with
listed entities from which the
person has resigned in the
past three years] as on March
31,2023




Member of the Committee of | Nil Nil
Board of other Indian Listed

Limited as on March 31, 2023

Shareholding of Directors - 2049650

(As on March 31, 2023)




Board’s Report

To,
The Members,
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present their 24™ Annual Report on the state of affairs of the Company together
with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited [“the
Company’] for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Financial Results

The summarized financial performance (Standalone & Consolidated) of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 is given below:
[Amount in lacs]

Standalone Financial Statement Consolidated Financial Statement

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023
Revenue from 319.66 650.04 491.00 830.24
Operations
Other Income 32.66 37.63 0.62 25.39
Total Revenue 352.32 687.66 491.62 855.63
Total Expenditure 561.02 517.81 904.32 727.43
Profit before (208.70) 169.86 (412.70) 128.21
exceptional and
extraordinary items
and tax
Adjustments for 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
extraordinary /
exceptional items
Profit Before Tax (208.70) 169.86 (412.70) 128.21
Less: Tax
Expenses:

- Current Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
- Short / (Excess) 0.00 0.00 0.71 0.00
provision of

previous year




- Deferred Tax 0.02 0.00 1.12 2.08
(Credit)/charge
Profit After (208.72) 169.85 (412.34) 130.29
Tax /Total

Comprehensive

Income/ Loss

Earnings per equity

share (Amt. per

share)

- Basic (2.05) 1.67 (4.05) 1.28
- Diluted (2.05) 1.67 (4.05) 1.28

Review of Operations

Standalone:
During the year under review, the Standalone total Income was Rs. 687.66 lacs against
Rs.352.32 lacs for the corresponding previous year.

Total Comprehensive income for the period was Rs. 169.85 lacs as against the loss of Rs. 208.72 lacs in the
corresponding previous year

Consolidated:
During the year under review, the consolidated total Income was Rs. 855.63 Lakhs as against Rs. 491.62 Lakhs

for the corresponding previous year.

Total Comprehensive consolidated income for the period was Rs. 130.29 Lakhs /- as against the loss of
Rs. 412.34 Lakhs in the corresponding previous year

Transfer to Reserves
This year Company does not have enough profit to transfer in reserve.
Change in the Nature of the Business:

There is no change in the nature of the business during the year under review

Dividend



Company in the process of expansion of its business, your Directors have not recommended any dividend

for the year under review.

State of Company’s Affairs

Your Company has performed well and your Directors are relentlessly striving for the betterment of the business and
simultaneously your Directors are optimistic about the future and expect the business to perform much better in the
forthcoming years

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis as required in terms of the Listing Regulations is annexed to the
report as Annexure | and is incorporated herein by reference and forms an integral part of this report.

Share Capital

As on 31%t March, 2023, the Authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty
Five Crores only) divided into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs 10/-(Rupees Ten only)
each; and Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital of the Company is Rs. 10,18,90,980/- (Rupees Ten
Crore Eighteen Lacs NinetyThousand Nine Hundred Eighty only) divided into 1,01,89,098 (One Crore
One Lakh Eighty Nine Thousand Ninety Eight) Equity Shares of Rs. 10.00/- (Rupees Ten only) each. The
Company has only one class of equity shares having at par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity
shares entitled to one vote per share.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
» Inductions / Appointment or Re-appointment of Director:

1. In accordance with section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Articles of Association of the
Company Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane(DIN: 01689700), Joint Managing Director of the Company,
retires by rotation and being eligible; offers himself for re-appointment at the forthcoming 24™ Annual
General Meeting. The Board recommends the said reappointment for shareholders’ approval.

2. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the same
by the Board at its meeting held on 12th December, 2022, Mr. Roychand Chenraj [DIN: 01356394] being
appointed as the additional director of the Company and consequently he was re-appointed as a Chairman
cum Non- Executive Director at the Extra- Ordinary General Meeting of the company held on February 14th
, 2023, liable to retire by rotation.

3. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the same
by the Board, Mr. Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody (DIN: 02713624) appointed as an additional director of the



company with effect from December 12, 2022 and consequently he was re-designated as a Managing Director
at the Extra- Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on February 14th, 2023, for a period of 5 years
[i.e. February 14, 2023 to February 13, 2028], liable to retire by rotation.

4. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the same
by the Board, Mr. Vinod Padmanabhan Vidyadharan (DIN: 06828861) appointed as an additional director in
the category of “Executive” with effect from December 12, 2022 and consequently he was re-appointed at the
Extra- Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on February 14th, 2023, liable to retire by rotation.
Further, he was resigned w.e.f. April 18, 2023

5. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the same
by the Board at its meeting held on 28th December, 2022, Mrs. Sonia Rakesh Bhatia [DIN: 07306337] being
appointed as the Independent Director of the company who is not liable to retire by rotation. Further, she
was re-appointed at the Extra- Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on February 14th, 2023 for a
term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from December 28, 2022 to December 27, 2027.

6. During the year under review Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar and Mr. Tanul Raju Sonawane has resigned
from the Directorship w.e.f. December 12th, 2022.

All the directors of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the fit and proper criteria as prescribed
under the applicable regulations and that they are not disqualified from being appointed as directors in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
are:

Sr. No. Name of KMP Designation
1. Mr. Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody Managing Director
2. Mr. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane Joint Managing Director
3. Mr. Vinod Namdeo Narsale Chief Financial Officer
4, Ms. PriyankaDharmeshPandey Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received the necessary declaration from each Independent Director in accordance with
Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, that he/she meets
the criteria of independence as laid out in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

In the opinion of the Board, there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as
Independent Directors of the Company and the Board is satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and experience
(including proficiency in terms of Section 150(1) of the Act and applicable rules there under) of all



Independent Directors on the Board. Further, in terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, Independent Directors of the
Company have included their names in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs.

Board Meetings

A calendar of meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors During the year, 08 (Eight)
Board Meetings were convened and held, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report.
The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Further, Committees of the Board usually meet on the same day of formal Board Meeting, or whenever the
need arises for transacting business. The recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board
for necessary approval and noting.

Discussions with Independent Directors

The Board’s policy is to regularly have separate meetings with Independent Directors, to update them on all
business related issues, new initiatives and changes in the industry specific market scenario. At such
meetings, the Executive Directors and other Members of the Management make presentations on relevant
issues.

The policy for Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors is available on our website
www.keerti.org.

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement/ SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The Directors expressed satisfaction
with the evaluation process.

Composition of Audit Committee

Your Company has formed an Audit Committee as per the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All members of the Audit
Committee possess strong knowledge of accounting and financial management.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision of the
Management’s financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels
of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out in
the financial reporting process by the Management, the statutory auditor and notes the processes and
safeguards employed by each of them.



The Committee met 5 (Five) times during the year, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance
Report along with composition of the Committee and their attendance.

Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Your Company has formed a Nomination & Remuneration Committee to lay down norms for determination
of remuneration of the executive as well as non-executive directors and executives at all levels of the
Company. The Nomination & Remuneration committee has been assigned to approve and settle the
remuneration package with optimum blending of monetary and non-monetary outlay.

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year, the details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report along with composition of the Committee and their attendance.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of
Directors. This policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members. The Board of
Directors is authorized to decide Remuneration to Executive Directors. The Remuneration structure
comprises of Salary and Perquisites. Salary is paid to Executive Directors within the Salary grade approved by
the Members. The Nomination & Remuneration committee has been assigned to approve and settle the
remuneration package with optimum blending of monetary and non-monetary outlay.

In terms of requirements prescribed under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy inter-alia providing the terms for appointment and payment of remuneration to
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.

During the year, there have been no changes to the Policy. The same is annexed to this report as Annexure
Il and is available on our website www.keerti.org.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are given in the Corporate
Governance Report along with shareholding in a Company.

Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Your Board has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to specifically look into the mechanism
of redressal of grievances of shareholders etc. The Committee reviews Shareholder’s / Investor’s complaints
like non-receipt of Annual Report, physical transfer/ transmission/transposition, split/ consolidation of share
certificates, issue of duplicate share certificates, etc. This Committee is also empowered to consider and
resolve the grievance of other stakeholders of the Company including security holders.

The Committee met 02(Two) times during the year, the details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report along with composition of the Committee and their attendance.



Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company
hereby confirm that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for
that period;

(c) thedirectors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 in respect of employees of the Company,
is enclosed as Annexure lll and forms part of this Report.
Further, no employee of the Company is earning more than the limits as prescribed pursuant to Section 197
read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Amendment Rules, 2016 in respect of employees of the Company.

Further, the names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn are disclosed in Annexure IV and
forms part of this Report.

Annual Return:

Pursuant to Notification dated 28th August, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs as published in
the Gazette of India on 28th August, 2020, the details forming part of the extract of Annual Return in Form



MGT-9 is not required to be annexed herewith to this report. However, the Annual Return will be made
available at the website of the Company at: www.keerti.org.

Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies

The Company has two wholly owned subsidiary Company, namely, Keerti Institute India Private Limited
(KIIPL) and G-Tec Jain Keerti Career Education Private Limited (Formerly Known as Keerti Tutorials India
Private Limited)

The Statement AOC-1 pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013read with Rule
5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Subsidiary Company is enclosed as Annexure V and
forms part of this Report.

Statutory Auditors’ and Auditors’ Report

The Members of the Company on 27t September 2022, appointed M/s. N K Mittal & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 113281W) as the statutory auditors of the Company, to hold office till the
conclusion of the 28" Annual General Meeting to be held in financial year 2026-27.

Further, Auditors Report as issued by M/s. N K Mittal & Associates., Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the
Company is self-explanatory and need not call for any explanation by your Board.

Secretarial Audit

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, M/s. Deep Shukla & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, have been appointed Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The Secretarial Audit
Report is enclosed as Annexure VI to this report.

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

M/s. Deep Shukla & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, have been appointed to give Annual
Secretarial Compliance Certificate. The Annual Compliance Certificate is enclosed as Annexure VII to this
report.

Internal Audit & Controls

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statement. The
Audit Committee of the Board periodically reviews the internal control systems with the management,
Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors. Significant internal audit findings are discussed and follow-ups are
taken thereon.



Further, Ms. Geeta Basant Tilwani appointed as an Internal Auditor of the Company for the further period of
5 years with effect from the Financial Year 2023-24 upto the Financial Year 2027-28.

Employees’ Stock Option Plan
The Company has not provided stock options to any employee.
Vigil Mechanism

In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for
directors and employees to report genuine concerns has been established. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.keerti.org. The employees of the Company are made
aware of the said policy at the time of joining the Company.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has laid down the procedure to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimization
procedures. These procedures are reviewed by the Board annually to ensure that there is timely identification
and assessment of risks, measures to mitigate them, and mechanisms for their proper and timely monitoring
and reporting.

Corporate Governance Report

We ensure that, we evolve and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices sincerely, not
only to boost long-term shareholder value, but also to respect minority rights. We consider it as our inherent
responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding our operations and performance, as well
as the leadership and governance of the Company.

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report along with the Certificate from a
Practicing Chartered Accountants, regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance, is annexed
as Annexure VIl and forms part of this Report.

Deposits

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any fixed deposits during the year under review under
Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no unclaimed deposits, unclaimed / unpaid interest,
refunds due to the deposit holders or to be deposited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as on
March 31, 2023.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments Under Section 186

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees given and Investments made during the year covered under the provisions
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.



Related Party Transactions

All Related Party transactions that were entered into during the financial year under reference were on the
arm’s length basis and were in ordinary course of business and in compliance with the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. There are no materially significant related party transactions between the Company and the
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Subsidiaries, relatives or other designated persons, which
may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Accordingly, particulars of contracts
or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) along with the justification for entering
into such contract or arrangement in form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

All Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee and have been approved by the
Board. Omnibus approval of Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions that are foreseen and
repetitive in nature.

Your Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions, which is also available on Company’s
websitewww.keerti.org.

The details of the related party transactions as per Accounting Standard 18 are set out in the Significant
Accounting policies part of this report.

Conservation of Energy, Research and Development, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

A. Conservation of Energy:

We continue to strengthen our energy conservation efforts. We are always in lookout for energy
efficient measures for operation and value conservation of energy through usage of latest
technologies for quality of services. Although the equipments used by the Company being in the
business of trading and marketing of agricultural inputs are not energy sensitive by their very nature,
still the Company is making best possible efforts for conservation of energy, which assures that the
computers and all other equipments purchased by the Company strictly adhere to environmental
standards, and they make optimum utilization of energy.

The Company has also put in place the continuous process of identifying and replacing in a phased
manner, the machinery used like Computers, Air Conditioners and UPS etc., which are low in

efficiency.

B. Research and Development (R&D)

The Company believes that in order to improve the quality and standards of services, the Company
should have a progressive Research and Development Process, which should keep on increasing along
with the scale of operations of the Company.



C. Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

In this era of competition, in order to maintain and increase the clients and customers, we need to
provide best quality services to our clients and customers at minimum cost, which is not possible
without innovation, and adapting to the latest technology available in the market for providing the
services. The management of your Company is focused on the ongoing process of technology up
gradation, and reinvention of business model of your Company, as and when required.

D. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outflow

During the year under review, there was no earning or outgoing in foreign exchange.

Cost Audit

As per the Cost Audit Orders and in terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Cost Audit is not
applicable to our Company.

Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR)

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, every company having net worth of rupees five hundred
crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more
during any financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board.
Your Company does not fall under the provisions of aforesaid Section; therefore, CSR Committee has not
been constituted.

Obligation of Company Under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9™ December, 2013.
Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal Complaints Committee to look into
complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of any women employee.

The Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and has set
up Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year Company has not received any complaint
of harassment.

Secretarial Standards
The Company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable

secretarial standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems are adequate
and operating effectively.



Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

Material Changes and Commitments Affecting the Financial Position of the Company:

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the report.
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Annexure — |

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

We are a global technology services firm and Companies are transforming their technology stack, to operate
with agility and flexibility. We are trusted to our existing students, partners, employees and franchisees in their
transformation journey and enable them to be leaders in their respective fields or industries. We are seeing that
traditional technology services are rapidly evolving and “shift to the new” is becoming more pronounced.
Growth in the technology services sector will be led by next generation technologies and services, such as

digital, cloud, data, engineering and cybersecurity.

Companies are actively exploring opportunities for digitization, leading to increased demand for consulting
services. Digital technologies and next-generation technologies such as 5G, Al/ Intelligent Enterprise, robotics
and blockchain, are anticipated to grow exponentially in the near future. We assist our students to create new

possibilities at the intersection of design, domain, consulting and next-generation technologies.

Our IT Services segment provides a various courses to age wise group of peoples, mostly students and give
them path to achieve their goals. We have our separate placement department for our existing students who
completed the courses from our institute and they got the opportunity to clear the interview and get the job as
per their respective profile. We are dealing in IT and IT-enabled services which include digital strategy
advisory, customer-centric design, technology Companies globally embarking on programs of transformation
that would improve operational efficiency and embracing agility at scale. Today, the pandemic has served to

accelerate this need to transform. Customers have accelerated their adoption of technology.

Hence, there is a growing demand for IT professionals and also significant skill gap for critical IT skills. As it
may be an appropriate time for upskilling and reskilling of existing staff, however, there is an immense

opportunity for the students who aspire to be fetched in the IT Industry.

Business Overview:

Today, as this new era of digital transformation brings in plethora of opportunities for growth. Needless to
mention the digital transformation in education segment is for here to stay. In the coming financial year, as
technology and digital transformation continue to expand its horizons, there shall be continuous demand for
skilled manpower across the industries and various sectors.

With the boost in the economic activity, your company shall continue to look for newer ways to sustainable
and profitable growth in technical and non-technical space of education and training. Your company intends
to add new verticals and programs based on the current technology and innovation.



While looking ahead, we are optimistic of the opportunities coming our way and look forward to share a year
with new milestones.

Our Business Strategy:

Our Company is strategically preparing itself for the next phase of growth through value-added capabilities,
new capacities, continuous perseverance, and inventiveness. It is taking on new opportunities which are
bottom line accretive and margin accretive. The expansion strategies have been devised keeping in mind its
risk-mitigating approach towards incurring capex and making continuous investments into the productive
assets to become “future ready” and deliver on our promises. The Company’s agile business model and
portfolio ensured conversion of opportunities, maximally optimizing the country’s conducive and relatively
stable environment in an otherwise volatile global weather, leading to a quantum leap in performance, back
to pre-pandemic and pre-portfolio realignment levels. Cost efficiency programs together with strategic
investments for new facilities, product launches, and launch of online business models supported this journey
of profitable growth.

Our vision is to:

1)Accelerate growth — focus and scale Our first priority is growth through focus on identified markets and
sectors within markets, bringing the best of courses to our clients.

2. Strengthen clients and partnerships Our second strategic priority is to strengthen clients and partnerships
through four levers:

- Global account executive model: We have global account executives, senior leaders representing Wipro
for our key clients, who are enabled by a team of industry and technology specialists and delivery leaders
and with strong decision-making capabilities including committing on investments, to grow these client
accounts.

- Large deals expertise: The second lever where we are significantly boosting our capabilities is in large deal
origination and signing. We have invested in a large deal expertise team consisting of deal principals, financial
and commercial modelers, experienced consultants and program directors, to bring expertise in large deal
creation, solutioning, structuring and supporting our SMUs in signing large deals.

—> Strategic partnerships: We are committed to scale partnerships with our key alliances such as Amazon
Web Services, Microsoft, Google Cloud Platform, Service Now, Sales force, SAP and IBM. We have intensified
our efforts to build dedicated ‘Cloud Studios’ and ‘Centers of Excellence’, talent, and our capability to take
joint business solutions to our clients.



DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:
The financial performance of the Company has increase in the year under review.
During the year under review, the Standalone total Income was Rs. 687.66 lakhs as against Rs. 352.32 lakhs

for the corresponding previous year.

Total Comprehensive loss for the period was Rs. 169.86 Lakhs as against loss of Rs. 208.72 lakhs in the
corresponding previous year.

CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 read with Schedule V
part B(1) details of changes in Key Financial Ratios is given hereunder:

S.NO. | Key Financial Ratio FY 2022-23 *FY 2021-22
1. Debtors Turnover Ratio %

4.38 1.65
2. Inventory Turnover Ratio % } i
3. Interest Coverage Ratio % 169.86 (309.80)
4. Current Ratio %

10.70 9.75
5. Debt Equity Ratio % 0.00 0.00
6. Operation Profit Margin %

24.70 (59.24)
7. Net Profit Margin %

24.70 (59.24)
8. Change in Return on Net Worth | %

16.90 (24.98)

*Previous year’s Figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements in this report and Corporate Governance Report read together with the Directors’ Report and
financial statement describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations and
predictions, may be “forward looking statements”. Actual results may differ from those expressed or implied
due to variations in prices of raw materials, seasonal demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets,
changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments within India and other incidental

factors.



For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Date: 08/06/2023 DIN: 02713624 DIN:01689700

Regqd. Office:
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Annexure - Il

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Constitution of Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) constituted the committee to be known as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of three or more non-executive directors out of which
not less than one-half are independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director.
However, the chairperson of the company (whether executive or nonexecutive) may be appointed as a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such Committee."

Objective

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 under the Listing Agreement.
The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of directors, KMP, senior
management personnel and other employees.

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

— To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management.

— To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees.

— To formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

— To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for
further evaluation of the Board.

— To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management.

— To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort,
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

— To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial
persons and create competitive advantage.

— To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.



— To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.
— To Implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.
Applicability

= Directors (Executive and Non-Executive)

= Key Managerial Personnel
= Senior Management Personnel

Definitions:

“Act” shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, including the modifications,
amendments, clarifications, circulars or re-enactment thereof.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or
reconstituted by the Board.

“Company” means Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited.
“Directors” mean Directors of the Company.
“Independent Director” means a Director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies Act, 2013
and includes -

0 Managing Director, or Executive Director or manager and in their absence, a whole- time director;
(includes Executive Chairman)

0 Company Secretary;

0 Chief Financial Officer; and

0 Such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Policy” or “This policy” means Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by
him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

“Senior Management” Senior Management means personnel of the company who are members of its core
management team excluding the Board of Directors. This would also include all members of management
one level below the executive directors including all functional heads.



Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement as may be amended from time to time shall
have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

Role and Power of the Committee:-

Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee:

The Committee shall:

e Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director.

e |dentify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this
policy.

e Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel.

Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management

(i). Appointment criteria and qualifications

e The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the
Board his / her appointment.

e A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is
considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise
and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

e The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position
may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a
special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion
indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

(ii).  Term/Tenure
a. Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

e The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director
or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made
earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

b. Independent Director:
e An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of

the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.



No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said
period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity,
either directly or indirectly. However, if a person who has already served as an Independent Director
for 5 years or more in the Company as on October 1, 2014 or such other date as may be determined
by the Committee as per regulatory requirement; he/ she shall be eligible for appointment for one
more term of 5 years only.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a
Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

Evaluation
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly).

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules
and regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and
compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of
the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

(i).

General:

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for
approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post
approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required;

The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director shall be in accordance with
the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the Company and as per
the provisions of the Act;



Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the
Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case
of Whole-time Director;

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying
them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the
remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the
premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

(ii). Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel:

(iii).

Fixed pay:

The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly
remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The
breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to P.F,
pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/ the
Person authorized by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the
shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall
pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the
Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central
Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such
sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the Central
Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is
refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum
refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

Remuneration / Commission:

The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions mentioned in the
Articles of Association of the Company and the Act.
Sitting Fees

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending
meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs.



One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central
Government from time to time.

=  Commission:

Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not
exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Act.

= Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

Membership.-

= The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being
independent.

= Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.
=  Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

=  Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.
Chairman:-

= Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director;

= Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a
Chairman of the Committee;

= |nthe absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose
one amongst them to act as Chairman;

= Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual
General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

Frequency of Meetings

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

Committee Members’ Interests

A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at
a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the
Committee.

Secretary



The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee.

Voting

=  Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of
Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the
Committee.

= In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

Minutes of Committee Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the Committee at the
subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent Board and
Committee meeting.

Implementation

e The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in
supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate.

e The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members.

Amendments to the Policy
The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit.

Amendments in the Law
Any subsequent amendment/modification in the listing agreement and/or other applicable laws in this
regard shall automatically apply to this Policy.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane

Place: Mumbai Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Date: 08/06/2023 DIN: 02713624 DIN:01689700
Regd. Office:

Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing

Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East Mumbai MH 400051,
Maharashtra, India



Annexure lll
Particulars of Remuneration

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016

The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of
the Company for the financial year 2022-23; and

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Managing Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Company in the financial vyear
2022-23.

Name & Designation *Remunera | % increase/ | Ratio of
tion of each | decrease in | remuneration of each
Director & | remuneration | Directors to median
KMP for | in the Financial | remuneration of
Financial Year 2022-23 | employees
Year 2022-
23 (INR)
A. Independent Directors
Mr. Rajvirendra 17,500 - 01:15.40
Singh Rajpurohit
Mr. Manish H Chandak 17,500 - 01:15.40
Ms. Archana Saini 15,000 - 01:17.97
Mrs. Sonia Rakesh Bhatia 5,000 01:53.92
B. Executive Directors/KMP
Mr. Mehroof Ifthikar - - -
Manalody (MD)
Mr. Sudhakar P. Sonawane 36,00,000 13.35:01
(Joint MD)
Mr. Vinod Narsale (CFO) 9,00,000 - 3.34:.01
Ms. Priyanka Pandey (CS) 4,35,850 - 1.62:01
Mr. Vinod Padmanabhan 15,00,000 - 5.56:01
Vidyadharan (Executive Dr.)




MD - Managing Director, WID - Whole-time Director, CFO - Chief Financial Officer; CS - Company

Secrtary.

Notes:
Median remuneration of
2022-23 is Rs. 2,69,615/-.

all the employees of the Company for the financial year

iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2022-23.

employees

Particulars Financial Financial Decrease by(%)
Year 2022-23 (Rs.) | Year 2021 -22 (Rs.)
Median remuneration of all 2,69,615 3,78,430 40%

iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company.

There were 09 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2023.

v. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

vi.  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company
Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, KMPs, Senior
Management and other employees of the Company is as per the Policy of the Company.

Place: Mumbai
Date:08/06/2023

Regd. Office:
Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody
Managing Director
DIN: 02713624

Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra East Mumbai MH 400051,

Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India

Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane
Joint Managing Director

DIN:01689700



Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2)(a) of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016

A. Names of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the FY22-23:

Annexure IV

Names of Designati¢ Remuneratio | Qualificati | Experiencel Age in Date of Last |% of
employees  n/ Nature g n on in years | years |commencem¢employmishare
Duties Received nt of ent held [holdi
[Rs.] p.a. employment ng
Sudhakar 29 50 24.04.1999 NA [20.12
Pandurang Managing
Soanwane Director 36,00,000 BA, MBA
Wholetime 26 52 09.07.2001 NA 0
Pandurang
Narayan Patekar Director 2,62,420 SSC
Vinod Namdeo B.com, 26 49 09.02.2017 | KIIPL 0
Narsale CFO 9,00,000 MBA
Priyanka Pandey |Company | 4,35850 | B.com, CS 3 32 21.10.2021 | Shreeji | 0
Secretary LLB Advisory
and Services
Complianc Private
e Officer Limited
Vinod 28 47 09.02.2017 NA 0
Padmanabhan B.com,
Vidyadharan COO 15,00,000 MBA
Geeta B Tilwani Account 2,69,615 B.com, 24 44 01.08.2018 KIIPL 0
Assistant - GDCA,
Internal MBA
Auditor
Ashish Gurav Co- 2,24,300 B.com 12 34 01.02.2019 |15.09.202( 0
ordinator 2
Ashish Banerjee Franchise 7,63,380 B.com 22 44 EduCAD| 0
Developm 07.05.2022 D
ent Learning
Division Solutions
Head Pvt. Ltd
Santosh Shinde Sr. 4,69,880 BA 18 42 01.06.2022 [(EduCAD| 0
Business D
Developm Learning
ent




Manager Solutions
(Franchise) Pvt. Ltd
Tanul Sonawane Sales and 64,390 B.com 7 28 1.1.2023 NA
Admin
Assistant
Santosh Sonawane | Office 2,07,496 HSC 11 36 01.02.2017 NA
Assistant

B. Names of other employees who are in receipt of aggregate remuneration of not less than rupees one
crore and two lakh during the FY22-23 or not less than rupees eight lakh and fifty-thousand per month (if
employed for part of the FY22-23): NA

C. If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year
which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn
by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse

and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company: NA

Place: Mumbai

Date: 08/06/2023

Regd. Office:

Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody
Managing Director
DIN: 02713624

Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing
Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East Mumbai MH 400051,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane

Joint Managing Director

DIN:01689700




Annexure -V
FORM AOC-I
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint

ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in INR)

Sl. No. 1. 2.
Name of the subsidiary Keerti Institute G-TEC JAIN KEERTI
India Private CAREER
Limited EDUCATION

PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly known
as Keerti Tutorials
India Private
Limited)

Reporting period for the subsidiary
concerned, if different from the
holding company’s reporting period.

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2023

Reporting currency and Exchange rate INR INR
as on the last date of the relevant

financial year in the case of foreign

subsidiaries.

Share capital 1,00,000 1,00,000
Reserves & surplus (1,90,89,324) (3,01,72,845)
Total assets 3,06,69,393 13,82,406
Total Liabilities 3,06,69,393 13,82,406
Investments 0 0
Turnover 5,04,46,824 0
Profit/(Loss) before taxation (16,85,362) (24,79,385)
Provision for taxation 0 0
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) 1,97,350 10,613
Profit/(Loss) after taxation (14,88,012) (24,68,772)
Proposed Dividend 0 0
% of shareholding 100% 100%




Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and
Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date -

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on -
the year end
No. -
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture -
Extend of Holding % -
3. Description of how there is significant influence -

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated -

5. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited -
Balance Sheet

6. Profit / Loss for the year -

i. Considered in Consolidation -

i. Not Considered in Consolidation -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane
Place: Mumbai Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Date:08/06/2023 DIN: 02713624 DIN:01689700

Regd. Office:
Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing

Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East Mumbai MH 400051,



Annexure VI

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited

Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing

Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East Mumbai 400051,

Maharashtra, India.

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited( name of the Company’s) books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31% March 20223 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder, the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on 315t March 2023 according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder as amended;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings (to the extent as may be applicable to the Company),

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): —



a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011(to the extent applicable ;)

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended; (to the extent as may be applicable to the Company)

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

b. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges viz NSE along with
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable for
respective periods.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that:

- The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes that took place in the composition of
the Board of Directors were in proper compliance during the period under review.

- Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

- All the decisions at the Board Meetings and the Committee Meetings were carried out by majority /

unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the Board of Directors and minutes of the Committee
Meetings as the case may be.

| further report that:



- There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, guidelines and
standards.

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-
Place: Mumbai DEEP SHUKLA
Date:24/05/2023 {PROPRIETOR}

FCS: 5652

CP NO.5364

UDIN: FO05652E000367948



To

ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Members
Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited

| further state that my said report of the even date has to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial/ Statutory Records is the responsibility of the Management of the

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on the audit.

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

Wherever required | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standard
is the responsibility of management. My examination is limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-
Place: Mumbai DEEP SHUKLA
Date:24/05/2023 {PROPRIETOR}
FCS: 5652
CP NO.5364

UDIN: F005652E000367948



Annexure VII
SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
[Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated February 08, 2019]

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report of “Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited” for the year ended
March 31, 2023.

We, Deep Shukla & Associates have examined:

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Keerti
Knowledge And Skills Limited [CIN: L72200MH1999PLC119661] (“the listed entity”),

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

(c) website of the listed entity,

(d) other relevant document(s)/ filing, which has been relied upon to make this certification,
for the year ended March 31, 2023 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of :

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars,

guidelines issued thereunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (“SEBI”);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been
examined, are:-

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder. (‘Listing Regulations’)

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009; [Not applicable during the review period]

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018; [Not applicable during the review period]

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 (to the extent applicable);

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; [Not applicable
during the review period]



(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; [Not
applicable during the review period)

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; [Not
applicable during the review period]

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable
Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; [Not applicable during the review period]

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (to the extent
applicable);

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993, as amended;

(k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Intermediaries) Regulations, 2008; [Not applicable
during the review period]

(1) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 2018; and
circulars/guidelines issued thereunder;.

We hereby report that, during the review period the compliance status of the listed entity is
appended below:

Additional Affirmations

Sr. | Particulars Compli | Observat
No ance ions/
Status Remarks
(Yes/No | by PCS*
/INA)
1 Secretarial Standards: Yes -

We have conducted a review of the compliance of listed entity
in accordance with the applicable Secretarial Standards (SS)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries India (ICSI).




Adoption and timely updation of the Policies:

¢ All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations are adopted
with the approval of board of directors / committees, as may
be applicable of the listed entity.

¢ All the policies are in conformity with SEBI Regulations and
has been reviewed & timely updated as per the regulations/
circulars/guidelines issued by SEBL

Yes

Maintenance and disclosures on Website:

¢ The listed entity is maintaining a functional website.

¢ Timely dissemination of the documents/ information under
a separate section on the website.

* Web-links provided in annual corporate governance reports
under Regulation 27(2) are accurate and specific which
redirects to the relevant document(s)/ section of the website.

Yes

Disqualification of Director:

None of the Director of the listed entity are disqualified under
Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013.

Yes

To examine details related to Subsidiaries of listed entity:
(a) Identification of material subsidiary companies

(b) Requirements with respect to disclosure of material as well
as other subsidiaries

Yes

Preservation of Documents:

As per the confirmations given by the listed entity, and on our
test check basis, it is preserving and maintaining records as
prescribed under SEBI Regulations and disposal of records as
per Policy of Preservation of Documents and Archival policy
prescribed under Listing Regulations.

Yes

Performance Evaluation:

The listed entity has conducted performance evaluation of the
Board, Independent Directors, and the Committees on an
annual basis as prescribed in SEBI Regulations

Yes

Related Party Transactions:

(a) The listed entity has obtained prior approval of Audit
Committee for all Related party transactions

Yes




(b) In case no prior approval obtained, the listed entity shall
provide detailed reasons along with confirmation whether
the transaction were subsequently approved/ratified/rejected
by the Audit committee.

9 Disclosure of events or information: Yes -

The listed entity has provided all the required disclosure(s)
under Regulation 30 along with Schedule III of Listing
Regulations within the time limits prescribed thereunder

10 | Prohibition of Insider Trading: Yes -

The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6)
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
11 Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if any:

No actions taken against the listed entity/ its
promoters/directors/ subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock
Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating
Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under
Page 5 of 7 SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued
thereunder.

Yes -

12 | Additional Non-compliances, if any: Yes -

No additional non-compliance observed for all SEBI
regulation/circular/guidance note etc.

The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:

S | Complianc | Regul | Dev | Ac | Type of Action | Det | Fine | Observa | Manag | Rem
r. |e ation/ | iati | tio | Advisory/ ai Am | ti ement | ark
N | Requireme | Circu |ons |n | Clarifi-cation |lsof |oun |ons/Re |Respo |s
o |nt 1 Ta | /Fine/  Show | Viol |t m n

(Regulatio | ar ke | Cause Notice/ | a arks of se

ns/ No. n | Warning, etc. | tion the

circulars/g by Practici

uid n

elines g

including Compan

specific y

clause) Secretar

y
Not Applicable




(b)  The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous

reports:
S | Complia | Regul | Dev | Acti | Type  of | Detai | Fine | Observati | Mana | Rem
r. | nce ation/ |iati |o Action Isof | Amo |ons/Rem |g ark
N | Require | Circul |ons |n Advisory/ | Viola | un arks of emen |s
o | ment ar No. Tak | Clarifi- tion |t the t

(Regulat en | cation Practicin | Resp

ions/ by | /Fine/ g on

circulars Show Company | se

/guid Cause Secretary

elines Notice/

includin Warning,

g etc.

specific

clause)

Not Applicable

For: M/s. Deep Shukla & Associates
Company Secretaries
(Peer Review Certificate No.: 2093/2022)

Sdl-
Deep Shukla
Practicing Company Secretaries
FCS : 5652; CP : 5364
UDIN: F005652E000225938
Date: 29/04/2023
Place: Mumbai



Annexure - Vil

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31*March, 2023 containing, inter-alia, the
matters as specified in Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) is presented hereunder:

Introduction

Corporate Governance is not merely the compliance of a set of regulatory laws and regulations but is a set
of good and transparent practices that enable an organization to perform efficiently and ethically to generate
long term wealth and create value for all its stakeholders. It goes beyond building and strengthening the trust
and integrity of the Company by ensuring conformity with the globally accepted best governance practices.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) observes keen vigilance over governance and fulfillment of
these regulations in letter and spirit, which entails surety towards sustainable development of the Company,
enhancing stakeholders’ value eventually.

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages best management practices, compliance of
law and adherence to these ethical standards has set a culture in the Company wherein good Corporate
Governance underlines interface with all stakeholders. The Company is committed to attain the highest levels
of transparency, accountability, and equity in all facets of its working, and in all its interactions with its
stakeholders including shareholders, employees, lenders and the government.

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful commercial
enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies
and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and fairness to all stakeholders comprising
regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors and the society at large.

The Company believes in adopting the best practices in the areas of Corporate Governance. Even in a strong
competitive business environment, the Management and Employees of the Company are committed to value
transparency, integrity, honesty and accountability which are fundamental core values of Corporate
Governance.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with
Schedule V and clauses(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation46 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as
applicable, with regard to corporate governance.

The details of Company’s board structure and the various committees that constitute the governance
structure 1 of the organization are covered in detail in this report.



Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) facilitates effective fulfilment of the Board’s tasks and provides
leadership and guidance to the Company’s management and helps in supervising the performance of the
Company and helps achieving goals. The Board plays a crucial role enhancing and protecting the reputation
of the organization are expected to exercise their duties in the best interests of shareholders and to maximize
wealth.

The Board comprises of the members distinguished in various fields such as management, finance, law and
marketing. This provides reliability to the Company’s functioning and the Board ensures a critical examination
of the strategies and operational planning mechanisms adopted by the management across the globe.

The Company has an optimum combination of Directors on the Board and is in conformity with Regulation
17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 as on March 31, 2023, the Board comprised of 8 Directors out of which 4 are Non-Executive &
Independent Directors; 3 are Executive Directors and 1 is Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director.

Agenda papers of the Boards and its Committee meetings are circulated to the Directors well in advance of
the meetings, supported with significant information as per Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for an effective and well-informed decision
making during the meetings.

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company’s business policy and strategy apart
from other normal business. During the year 08 (Eight) Board Meetings were held during the year ended 31st
March, 2023, the dates which are 18™ May, 2022, 25" July, 2022, 17t August, 2022, , 11" November, 2022,
12t December, 2022, 28" December, 2022 ,18™ January, 2023 and 6% February,2023 . Time gap between
any two meetings was not more than 120 days.

o (6 Attendance | Directorsh Other
" at previous | ip in other Board
No. of Board Equity . .
. AGM Held | Companie | Committee
Meetings Shares
Name of the on s s
. Category Attended held as . i . -
Directors . 27""Septem | (including | Chai | Me
During the on .
ber, 2022 section 8 | rper | mbe
E March (Y-Yes, N Company)
-Yes, N- son r
31,2023 pany
No)
Promoter - -
Mr. Sudhakar P cum Joint 2
. 8 2049650 Y
Sonawane Managing
Director
Mr. Mehroof | Managing 3 N 10
Ifthikar Manalody Director




Mr. Roychand | Non 3 20
Chenraj Executive
Director and 2038070 N
Chairman
Mr. Rajvirendra | Independent 7 0 y 7 10
Rajpurohit Director
Mr. Archana S Saini | Independent 8 0 y -
Director
Mr.  Manish  H | Independent 7 0 N -
Chandak Director
Mrs. Sonia Rakesh | Independent 2 0 N
Bhatia Director
Mr. Vinod | Executive 3
Padmanabhan Director 0 N
Vidyadharan

The Board periodicaAll the Directors have made necessary disclosures about the directorships and committee
positions they occupy in other companies. None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10
Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all Companies in which they are Directors.

The particulars of Directors, who are proposed to be re-appointed at the ensuing AGM, are given in the Notice
convening the AGM.

Further, there are no inter-se relationships between our Board Members of the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of experts specializing in accounting / financial management. During the
Financial Year 2022-2023, 5 (five) Meetings were held on
18t May, 2022, 17t August, 2022, 11t November, 2022, 18t" January, 2023 and 6" February, 2023. The time
gap between any two meetings was not more than 4 months and the Company has complied with all the
requirements as mentioned under the Listing Agreement/SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies
Act, 2013.

Details of the composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under:

. No. of Meetings
Name of the Director Category
Attended

Mr. Manish Heeralal Chandak Chairperson, Independent Director 05
Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit Member, Independent Director 05
*Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar | Member, Executive Director 03
*Mr. Vinod Padmanabhan ] )

. Member, Executive Director 02
Vidyadharan




*Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar resigned from the committee w.e.f 12t December, 2022 and Mr. Vinod
Padmanabhan Vidyadharan Appointed as member in the commitee w.e.f. 28" December, 2022.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in order to cover the matters specified under revised
Regulation 17(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. This Committee has powers and roles
comprising of Financial Reporting and disclosure, recommendation of appointment/removal of Auditors,
reviewing of company’s results, evaluation of Independent Directors performances.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 19 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time.

During the Financial Year 2022-2023, 4 (four) Meetings were held on
18t May, 2022, 17t August, 2022, 12™ December, 2022 and 28™" December, 2022.

Details of composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under:

. No. of Meetings
Name of the Director Category
Attended

. . . . . 04
Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit Chairman, Independent Director
Mrs. Archana Sanjay Saini Member, Independent Director 04
*Mr.Tanul Raju Sonawane Member, Non-Executive Director 03
*Mr. Roychand Chenraj Member, Non-Executive Director 01

*Mr. Tanul Raju Sonawane resigned from the committee w.e.f 12" December, 2022 and Mr. Roychand
Chenraj Appointed as member in the committee w.e.f. 28" December, 2022

This Committee has powers to recommend/ approve remuneration, Identification of Persons who are
qgualified to become director, recommend to the board their appointment and removal, approve
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.

The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors are defined in Performance Evaluation Policy,
which is available on our website www.keerti.org.

Remuneration Policy for Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees of the Company



As per listing regulation the Company is required to frame Remuneration Policy for Key Managerial Personnel
and Other employees. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee are responsible for Identifying suitable
person eligible to become director and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. Through
its compensation programme, the Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high
performance workforce.

The Independent Directors are entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, reimbursement of
expenses for participation in the Board/Committee meetings and commission as detailed hereunder:

a. Sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or Committee of the Board attended by him or her, of such
sum as may be approved by the Board within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013.

b. Commission on a quarterly basis, of such sum as may be approved by the Board and Members on the
recommendation of the Board Governance, Nomination and Compensation Committee. The aggregate
commission payable to all the Independent Directors and non-executive directors put together shall
not exceed 1% of the net profits of the Company during any financial year. The commission is payable
on pro-rata basis to those Directors who occupy office for part of the year.

c. Reimbursement of travel, stay and other expenses for participation in Board/Committee meetings.

d. Independent Directors and Promoter Directors are not entitled to participate in the stock option
schemes of the Company.

In determining the remuneration of Chairman, CEO and Managing Director, and Senior Management
Employees and Key Managerial Personnel, the Board Governance, Nomination and Compensation
Committee and the Board shall ensure/consider the following:

a. The balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives,
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

b. Alignment of remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and Directors with long-term interests of the
Company.

c. Company’s performance vis-a-vis the annual achievement, individuals’ performance vis-a-visKkRAs/KPIs,
industry benchmark and current compensation trends in the market.

The Board Governance, Nomination and Compensation Committee recommend the remuneration for the
Chairman, CEO and Managing Director, Senior Management and Key Managerial Personnel. The payment of
remuneration to the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors is approved by the Board and
Members. Approval of Members is also obtained in case of remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors.
There was no change to the remuneration policy during the financial year.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors are as under:



Sr. Name of Designation Fixed Salary per annum (In Rs.) Commi | Sitting Total
No Directors Basic Perquisit Total s-sion Fees
e/ Fixed
Allowanc Salary
e
M Promoter 36,00,000 - 36,00,000 - - 36,00,000
r.
cum Joint
Sudhakar P )
Mangaing
Sonawane .
Director
Promoter 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mr.
cum Non
Roychand .
) Executive
Chenraj .
Chairman
Mehroof M i 0 0 0 0 0 0
angain
Ifthikar angaing
Director
Manalody
Mrs. Sonia 5000 5000
Independen
Rakesh )
. t Director
Bhatia
*Mr. ) 2,62,420 - 2,62,420 - - 2,62,420
Whole-time
Pandurang N )
Director
Patekar
Mr. - - - - 17,500 17,500
o Independen
Rajvirendra S )
) . t Director
Rajpurohit
Mrs. Archana | Independen - - - - 15,000 15,000
S Saini t Director
Mr. Manish Independen - - - - 17,500 17,500
H Chandak t Director
Non- - - - - 7,500 7,500
Executive &
*Mr. Tanul R
Non-
Sonawane
Independen
t Director

* Resigned w.e.f. December 12, 2023

Further, there is no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the
Company. None of the Executive Directors are eligible for payment of any severance fees.



Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The terms of reference are in line with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
Committee reviews Shareholder’s/ Investor’ s complaints like non-receipt of Annual Report, physical
transfer/ transmission/transposition, split/ consolidation of share certificates, issue of duplicate share
certificates etc. This Committee is also empowered to consider and resolve the grievance of other
stakeholders of the Company including security holders.

During the Financial Year 2022-2023, 2 (Two) Meetings were held on 17t June, 2022 and 06" February, 2023.
The details of composition of the Committee and attendance during the year are as under:

. No. of Meetings
Name of the Director Category
Attended
*Mrs. Sonia Rakesh Bhatia Chairperson, Independent Director 01
Mrs. Archana Sanjay Saini Member, Independent Director 02
*Mr. Vinod Padmanabhan )
) Member, Independent Director 01
Vidyadharan
*Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar Member, Executive Director 01

*Mr. Pandurang Narayan Patekar resigned from the committee w.e.f 12t December, 2022 and Mr. Vinod
Padmanabhan Vidyadharan and Mrs. Sonia Rakesh Bhatia appointed in the Committee w.e.f 28"
December,2022.

The details of complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 are given in
the Table below. The complaints relate to non-receipt of annual report, dividend, share transfers, other

investor grievances, etc.

Details of complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year 2022-23:

Particulars Number of Compliant
Opening as on April 1, 2022 -
Received during the year -
Resolved during the year -
Closing as on March 31, 2023 -




General Body Meetings

Financial Year Date Location of the Meeting Time Special
(IST) Resolution
(s) Passed
2017-2018 | 17% September 2018 | 26/202, Anand Nagar, Nehru | 10:00 A.M Nil
Road, Vakola Bridge,Santacruz
2018-2019 | 27t September 2019 (East), Mumbai — 400055, 10:00 A.M 05
Maharashtra, India
2019-20 30% September 2020 | through Video Conferencing | 11:30A.M 01

(“vC”) / Other Audio-Visual
Means (“OAVM”)

2020-21 27% September, 2021 | through Video Conferencing | 11:00A.M Nil
(“vC”) / Other Audio-Visual
Means (“OAVM”)

2021-22 27t September, 2022 | through Video Conferencing | 11:00A.M 01
(“vC”) / Other Audio-Visual
Means (“OAVM”)

No Special Resolution was passed by the Company last year through Postal Ballot. None of the businesses
proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM require passing a Special Resolution through Postal Ballot.

Training for Board Members

Regulation 25(7) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, every listed company is required to conduct familiarization programme enabling the
Independent Directors of the Company to understand the Company’s business in depth that would facilitate
their active participation in managing the Company.

The Company has adopted a system to familiarize its Independent Directors with the Company, to make them
aware of their roles, rights & responsibilities in the Company, and nature of the industry in which the
Company operates business model of the Company, etc.

Performance Evaluation

The performance evaluation process is a constructive mechanism for improving board effectiveness,
maximizing strengths and tackling weaknesses, leading to an immediate improvement in
performance throughout the organization. The Board of the Company has carried out the annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually including the Chairman of the
Board as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, and Stakeholders Relationship Committee on parameters such as attendance and participation
in the Meetings, preparedness for the meetings, understanding of the Company & the external environment
in which it operates, contribution to strategic direction, raising of valid concerns to the Board, constructive



contribution to issues, active participation at meetings and engaging with & challenging the management
team without confronting or obstructing the proceeding of the Board and its Committee meetings of which
the Director is a member pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The
performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the
Independent Directors at its meeting. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Disclosures

I. Related Party Transactions

The transactions with related parties as per Accounting Standard AS-18 are set out in Notes to accounts under
Note No.34 forming part of financial statements. Further, details of the transactions were entered into with
Related Parties as defined under Section 188 the Companies Act, 2013. Further, there were no materially
significant transactions with related parties during the financial year which were in conflict with the interest
of the Company.

Il. Managing Director Certification
Certification on financial statements pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been obtained from the Managing Director of the
Company. Extract of the same is given at the end of this Report.

lll. Code of Conduct for Directors

The Board has laid down Codes of Conduct for Executive Directors and for Non-Executive/ Independent
Directors of the Company. The Codes of Conduct have been circulated to the Board and the compliance of
the same has been affirmed by them. A declaration signed by the MD in this regard is given at the end of this
Report.

IV. Subsidiary Companies

The Company has two wholly owned subsidiary Companies namely Keerti Institute India Private Limited and
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited. All the subsidiary companies of the Company are managed by their
Boards having the rights and obligations to manage these companies in the best interest of respective
stakeholders. The Company nominates its representatives on the Board of subsidiary companies and
monitors performance of such companies, inter alia, by reviewing:

a. Financial statements, the investment, inter corporate loans/advances made by the unlisted subsidiary
companies, statement containing all significant transactions and arrangements entered by the
unlisted subsidiary companies forming part of the financials being reviewed by the Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee of the Company on a quarterly basis.

b. Minutes of the meetings of the unlisted subsidiary companies, if any, are placed before the Company’s
Board regularly.



c. Providing necessary guarantees, letter of comfort and other support for their day-to-day operations
from time-to-time.

As required under Regulation 16(1)(c) and 24 of Listing Regulations, the Company has adopted a policy on
determining “material subsidiary” and the said Policy is available on the Company’s website at
www.keerti.org

V. Risk Management & Internal Control

The board has ultimate responsibility for risk management and internal control, including for the
determination of the nature and extent of the principal risks it is willing to take to achieve its strategic
objectives and for ensuring that an appropriate culture has been embedded throughout the organization.
The Company has implemented a comprehensive ‘Enterprise Risk Management’ framework in order to
understand the risks they are exposed to, put controls in place to counter threats, and effectively pursue
their objectives and further to anticipate, identify, measure, mitigate, monitor and report the risks, details of
which are given in the Risk Management section under ‘Management Discussion and Analysis Report’ which
forms part of this Annual Report. The team presents their key audit findings of every quarter to the Audit
Committee. The management updates the members about the remedial actions taken or proposed for the
same. The suggestions and comments from the Committee members are vigilantly incorporated and
executed by the Company.

VI. Independent Directors
The Independent Directors of the Company have the option and freedom to meet and interact with the
Company’s Management as and when they deem it necessary. They are provided with necessary resources
and support to enable them to analyze the information/data provided by the Management and help them to
perform their role effectively.

Vil. Compliance with mandatory / discretionary requirements under Regulation 27 read with Schedule
Il Part E of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015:
The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements under Regulation 27 and Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The status of compliance with non-
mandatory recommendations under Regulation 27 and Part E of Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided below:

e The Board: -As per Para A of Part E of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations, a non-executive Chairman
of the Board may be entitled to maintain a Chairman’s Office at the company’s expense and also
allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of his duties. The Chairman of the
Company is an Executive Director andhence this provision is not applicable to us.

o Shareholders rights: -Considering the dynamic shareholder demography and trading on the stock
exchanges, as a prudent measure, we display our quarterly and half yearly results on our website
www.keerti.org and also publish our results in widely circulated newspapers. We have communicated
the payment of dividend by e-mail to shareholders in addition to dispatch of letters to all
shareholders. We publish the voting results of shareholder meetings and make it available on our
website www.keerti.org, and report the same to Stock Exchanges in terms of Regulation 44 of the
Listing Regulations.




¢ Maodified opinion(s) in audit report: - The Auditors have issued an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

o Reporting of Internal Auditor: - Reporting of Head of Internal Audit is to the Chairman of the Audit,
Risk and Compliance Committee and administratively to the Chief Financial Officer. Head of Internal
Audit has regular and exclusive meetings with the Audit Committee.

VIII. Review of Directors' Responsibility Statement:

The Board in its report has confirmed that the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023
have been prepared as per applicable Accounting Standards and policies and that sufficient care has been
taken for maintaining adequate accounting records.

IX. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement:
The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as
specified under Regulation 32(7A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015
during the financial year ended 31*March, 2023.

X. Recommendation by Committee:
The Board has accepted all recommendations made by its committees during the financial year ended 31
March, 2023.

Xl. Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the
statutory auditors and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a
part, given below:

Nature of Payments Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)
Statutory Audit 2.00

Tax Audit 0.00

Other Services including reimbursement of expenses -

Total 2.00

Xll.Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

Sr. No. Particulars No. of Complaints
a. Complaints filed during the financial year Nil
b. Complaints disposed of during the financial year Nil
C. Complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil

XIil. Disclosure of the compliance with Corporate Governance:



The Company has complied with the Regulations 17-20, 22-23, 24A, 25-27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulations (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
during the financial year ended 315 March, 2023. Regulations 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the Company.

Means of Communication

The quarterly and annual financial results are normally published in Free Press Journal (English) and Navshakti
(Marathi) newspapers. The following information is promptly uploaded on the Company’s website viz.
www.keerti.org.

General Shareholder Information

i. Annual General Meeting

Day, Date & Time Thursday, July 20t , 2023 at 12.15 PM (IST)
Venue Through VC or OAVM
ii.Financial year - April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023

Financial Calendar (Tentative) — Financial Year 2022-23

15t Quarter : On or before 15t August, 2022
2" Quarter : On or before 15™ November, 2022
3 Quarter : On or before 15™" February, 2022
4t Quarter : On or before 30t" May, 2023

iii. Dividend

In order to conserve the resources for the further growth of the Company, your Directors think not to
recommend any dividend for the year under review.

iv. Listing with Stock Exchange:
The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2023-24 to NSE where the
Company’s Equity Shares are listed.

v. Stock Code / Symbol
NSE Security ID KEERTI
ISIN in (NSDL and CDSL) INE586X01012
Corporate ldentity Number (CIN) L72200MH1999PLC119661




vi. Market Price Data

The market price data i.e. monthly high and low prices of the Company’s shares on National Stock Exchange
of India Limited (NSE) are given below:

*NSE
Month Share Price (Rs.)

High Low
Apr-2022 21.70 17.25
May-2022 20.50 14.90
Jun-2022 21.75 14.40
Jul-2022 24.20 16.10
Aug-2022 28.45 19.70
Sep-2022 32.85 29.75
Oct-2022 32.85 32.85
Nov-2022 34.45 32.85
Dec-2022 34.45 34.45
Jan-2023 36.15 34.45
Feb-2023 37.95 36.15
Mar-2023 39.80 37.95

* Source: NSE Website
Vii. Performance in comparison

The company Fully Paid Share Price versus Nifty 50
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viii.  Registrar & Transfer Agent

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai — 400083, Maharashtra, India.
Tel No.: 022 -4918 6270

E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

iX. Share Transfer System

Share Transfers in physical form can be lodged with Link Intime India Private Limited. The transfers are
normally processed within 15 days from the date of receipt if the documents are complete in all respects.

X. Distribution of shareholding
Share Holding (Nominal Value) Rs. Shareholders
(As on 31.03.2023) No. %
1-- 500 1441 0.95
501-- 1,000 70 0.61
1,001 - 2,000 37 0.57
2,001 - 3,000 30 0.76
3,001 - 4,000 11 0.38
4,001 -5,000 21 0.97
5,001 -10,000 33 2.09
10,001 and above 49 93.67
TOTAL 1692 100.00




xi. Shareholding Pattern as on 31*March, 2023:

Sr. Category Total No. of Shares % of Total
No. held(of Re. 10/- each ) Shareholdings
1. Promoter Group 6125790 60.121
2. Financial Institutions / Banks - -
3. Individual shareholders holding nominal | 780099 7.656
share capital uptoRs. 2 lakh.
4. Individual shareholders holding nominal | 2645076 25.960
share capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakh
5. Hindu Undivided Family 346636 3.402
6. Non Resident Indians (Non Repat) 8118 0.080
7. Non-Institutions
Key Managerial Personnel 10 0.000
8. Clearing Member - -
9. Bodies Corporate 59130 0.580
10 Body Corp-Ltd Liability Partnership 224239 2.201
Total 10189098 100.00

xii. Top 10 Shareholders as on March 31, 2023

Sr.No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding as on 31 March, 2023
Shareholders No. of shares | % of total shares of the Company

1. Sudhakar Pandurang Sonawane 2049650 20.1161

2 Chajjer Roychand Chenraj 2038070 20.0025

3 G-Tec Education Private Limited 2038070 20.0025

4. Amar Rajmal Kakaria 310800 3.0503

5 Amit Lodha 124000 1.217

6. Ashok Kumar Mohatta 258354 2.5356

7 Bharath C Jain 273326 2.6825

8 Gaurav Chakraborty 148800 1.4604

9 Kusum Lodha 124000 1.217

10 Mukti Lodha 124000 1.217

11 Shaila Ramesh Lukad 258332 2.5354

12 Sharad Jijaba Kharat 229412 2.2515




xiii. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

According to the requirements of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) the shares of the company
are to be compulsorily traded in a dematerialized form. Consequently the company had written to its
shareholders advising them that they had the option of converting their shareholdings from the physical form
to the electronic form. As of 315t March, 2023, a total number of 10189098 shares, representing 100% of the
total shares of the company have been dematerialized.

xiv. Address for Correspondence
Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing , Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai MH 400051, Maharashtra,India

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody
Date:08/06/2023 Managing Director
DIN: -02713624



CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To,
The Members of
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

| have examined the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance by Keerti Knowledge &Skiils
Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2023, as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My
examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, and the
representations made by the Directors and the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) in the light of CoVID-
19 situation, | certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2023.

| state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

DEEP SHUKLA
{PROPRIETOR}
FCS: 5652

Place: Mumbai CP NO.5364

Date: 25.05.2023 UDIN: FO05652E000380268



CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors
of Keerti Knowledge & Skills Limited having CIN L72200MH1999PLC119661 and having Registered Office at
Unit No. 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing, Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla, Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai,
Maharashtra, 400051,India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company
for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C
Sub clause 10(i) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies, by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Din No. Name Of Director Date Of Appointment
01356394 Roychand Chenraj 12/12/2022
01689700 Sudhkar Pandurang Sonawane 29/04/1999
02713624 Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody 12/12/2022
06770931 Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 09/02/2017
07306337 Sonia Rakesh Bhatia 28/12/2022
08220007 Manish Heeralal chandak 04/09/2020

Vinod Padmanabhan
06828861 Vidyadharan 12/12/2022
08427866 Archana Sanjay Saini 06/05/2019

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.



Place: Mumbai
Date: 25.05.2022

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

DEEP SHUKLA
{PROPRIETOR}

FCS: 5652

CP NO.5364

UDIN: FO05652E000380433



CERTIFICATION FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CFO:

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), | hereby
certify as under:

a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial
reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose
to take to rectify these deficiencies.

There have been no

I.  Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

Il.  Significant changes in accounting policies during the year;

M. Instances of fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, of the management
or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial

reporting.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai Mehroof Ifthikar Manalody Vinod N Narsale
Date:08/06/2023 Managing Director Chief Financial officer

DIN: - 02713624



DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR ON ‘CODE OF CONDUCT’

| hereby confirm that:

The Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and senior management, affirmation that they
have complied with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai Sudhakar P Sonawane

Date:08/06/2023 Joint Managing Director
DIN: - 01689700



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited
(the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013(the “Act”)in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS””) And other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2023, the Profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibility under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of ethics issued by the Institute of
Charted Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Other Information

The Company’s Board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, managements is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing , as a applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected on influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charges with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulations precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.



2) As required by Section 143(3)of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as
on 31st March2023.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Intermediaries’, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

e. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Funding Parties’, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,



lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

f. Based on our audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) contain any material mis-statements.

g. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

For N K Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 113281W

N K Mittal

(Partner)

Membership Number: 046785
UDIN: 23046785BGWMSW4964

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25" April, 2023



“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 of the independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Keerti Knowledge and
Skills Limited on the financial statement as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

(1) (a) (A) In our Opinion and according to the information given to us, the company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) In our Opinion and according to the information given to us, the Property, Plant & Equipment have been
physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) In our Opinion and according to the information given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the company does not hold any immovable property during the year, hence 3(i)(c) is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

(2) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is into service
sector, therefore question of physical verification does not arise.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has no working Capital limit sanctioned from Bank or Financial Institutions.

(3) (a) In our opinion and on the basis of examination of books and records and on the basis of information and
explanation given to us the Company has made investments in companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships. The
Company has also provided guarantee or security or granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties details of which are given hereunder:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Loans

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Subsidiaries 7.40

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
such cases

- Subsidiaries 581.86

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that the investments made, and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided to the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company are not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that in respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal have not been stipulated. However, the interest payment dates are stipulated and such interest from the

wholly owned subsidiaries are not regular as detailed below: (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars INR Due Date Extent of delay
Wholly owned subsidiaries 90.96 Prior to 01.04.2022 365

Total 90.96




d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that no amount is overdue for more than ninety days except for amounts of % 90.96 lakhs, details of
which are given hereunder. The parties involved are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and the management

is monitoring them for ensuring recovery of the interest.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

No of Cases Principal overdues Interest overdues Total overdues Remarks, if any
2 - 90.96 90.96 Interest
Total - 90.96 90.96

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, except as under:

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Party
Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in | - -
nature of Loans
- Repayable on demands (A) - - 581.86
Aggregate does not specify any terms or | - -
period of repayment (B)
Total (A+B) - - 581.86
Percentage of Loans/ advances 100%

(4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing
guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(5) In our Opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any
deposit from the public within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

(6) According to the information and explanations given to us Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance
of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of activities carried by the
Company. Therefore, this clause is not applicable to the given company during the relevant year.

(7) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the company, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Income-tax,
Service tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
the company did not have any dues on account of Provident fund, ESIC, Sales Tax, Custom Duty and excise duty.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were
in arrears as at March 31%, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(8) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief there are no
transactions that were not recorded in the books of account, and which has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(9) a) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.




b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that
the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not borrowed any
term loans during the year.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the audit procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis
have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Financial
Statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us, we report that the
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies.

(10) a) According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year.

b) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

11) a) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, no
fraud by the company nor any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, no report
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with Central Government.

c) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, no
whistle- blower complaints have been received

12) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the
Companyis not a Nidhi Company hence, reporting under clause xii of the Order not applicable.

13) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where ever
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

14) a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of it business.
b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under audit.

15) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors nor persons connected with them. The
provisions of section 1920f Companies Act have been complied.

16) a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) a, b and ¢ of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.



17) The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

18) During the year there has not been any resignation of statutory auditors.

19) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

20) a) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company,
Schedule VII to the Companies Act is not applicable to the Company.

b) As per the information and explanation given to us and based on examination of records of the company,
subsection (5) and sub-section (6) of section 135 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the Company

21) There have not been any qualifications or adverse remarks

For N K Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 113281W

N K Mittal

(Partner)

Membership Number: 046785
UDIN: 23046785 BGWMSW4964

Place: Mumbai
Date : 25™ April, 2023



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our report to the
Members of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of subsection 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the standards on auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those standards and the guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial
Statements.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements .

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the
internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAL

For N K Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 113281W

N K Mittal

(Partner)

Membership Number: 046785
UDIN: 23046785 BGWMSW4964

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25™ April, 2023



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited (“the company”) is a public limited company, incorporated in India having its
registered office at Unit No 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing, Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051. The equity shares of the Company are listed on NSE Limited. The company is engaged in the field of
Information Technology related computer services.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION:
A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These standalone or separate financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for
issue on 25" April 2023.

B. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency.
C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. The following items
are measured on each reporting date as under:

o Defined Benefit plans- plan assets at fair value
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell as asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

D. Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actual result may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.



Judgments:

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements have been given below:

o Classification of leases into finance or operating lease

e Whether an arrangement contains a lease.

e Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and assessment
of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties:

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the subsequent period financial statements is included below:

e Estimation of current and deferred tax expense and asset/ liability.

o Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment.

o Estimation of defined benefit obligation.

o Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies.

e Impairment of trade receivables.

E. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions
turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimated and
judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in
respect of the periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and
the expected residual value at the end of its life.
The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
acquired. The lives are based on historical experience with similar as well as anticipation of future events, which
may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

2. Employee benefits
Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits are evaluated with reference to uncertain events and based
upon actuarial assumptions including among others discount rates, expected rates of return on plan assets,
expected rates of salary increases, estimated retirement dates, mortality rates.



3. Revenue Recognition
The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the
contract. Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The Company allocates
the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is
observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations. The Company exercises
judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of
time. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such
losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

4. Leases
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgment in assessing the
lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally based
on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

5. Loss allowance for receivables
The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to reflect
current and estimated future economic conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated future
economic conditions relating to industries the company deals with and the countries where it operates. In
calculating expected credit loss, the company has also considered credit reports and other related credit
information for its customers to estimate the probability of default in future and has taken into account estimates
of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID -109.

6. Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

7. Contingencies
On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies and
obligations. Obligations relating to project executions is largely depended upon performance of services by
respective contractors for contingent losses that are considered Probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an
accrual in financial statements. Loss contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed
as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not
disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognised until the contingency has been
resolved ad amounts are received or receivable.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets: An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating
cycle;



b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:;
c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

Liabilities: A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) It is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:;

c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other assets/ liabilities are classified as noncurrent. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in Cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained
its normal operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of Current / Noncurrent classification of assets and
liabilities.

B. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

PPE is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits
availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Property, plant and equipment
acquired on hire purchase basis are recognized at their cash values. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are
capitalized in accordance with the Company's accounting policy.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured
as per I-GAAP less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of 1st April,
20109.

PPE not ready for the Ended use on the Balance Sheet date is disclosed as "capital work in-progress.

Depreciation is recognized using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than freehold
land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule 1l to
the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation,
over the useful life so determined.

Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at
each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value is accounted on
prospective basis.

Depreciation on additions to / deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use.
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An item of Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when it is estimated that Company will not receive
future economic benefits from its use or upon its disposal. Any gains and losses on disposal of such item of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

C. Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual values are determined based on technical parameters /
assessment, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions
of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance support, etc.

The estimated useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment is aligned to the useful life specified under Schedule Il
to the Companies Act, 2013 except useful life for computing depreciation in the following case:

Assets Useful Life (Years)
Buildings 30-60
Plant and Machinery 8-20
Office Equipment 5
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8-10
Computers 3
Energy Saving Equipment 15
Pollution Control Equipment 15
Electric Installations 10
The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair

approximation of the period over which the Property, Plant and Equipment are likely to be used.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition or
installation, and in the case of a new project, from the date of commencement of commercial production.

Depreciation on an item of property, plant and equipment sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped, is provided up to the
date on which such item of property, plant and equipment is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

D. Impairment of assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment
property, intangible assets and investments in subsidiary company to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are tested for
impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. The intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for
impairment each year.



Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is determined:

a) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and
b) in the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of the cash generating unit's net selling price and the value in use.

The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is
determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company suitably adjusted for risks specified to
the estimated cash flows of the asset

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such
deficit is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognized for the asset
(or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments
1) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Financial assets are subsequently classified
as measured at
amortized cost

fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:



- Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost has impaired and
provisions are made for impairment accordingly. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired' when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward
looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

ii) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they are
classified as fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in fair
value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

iii) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or



realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of fixed assets are capitalised as part of cost of the

assets, up to the date the asset is put to use. Other Borrowing cost is charged to Statement of Profit & loss in the
year in which they are incurred.

. Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in statement of profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses the Company recognizes
a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets- unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized
/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no
longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.

. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolesces and damages as
under:



(i) Raw and packing materials, stores and spares including fuel: At Cost on FIFO basis
(ii) Stock in trade and Finished Goods: At Cost plus appropriate overheads

Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out (FIFO) basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and
other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to
more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

Provision and contingent liabilities

The Company sets up a provision when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it will probably require an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or where
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of
the management/ independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect
the current management estimate.

. Revenue recognition

A. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

B. Revenues from Products are recognized at a point in time when control of the goods passes to the customer,
usually upon delivery of the goods.

C. The Company Presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.
D. Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which may also refer as unbilled revenues)

while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which may also refer to as unearned
revenues).



E. Government Subsidy
Subsidy has been recognized by the company on the basis of the notification received from the ministry of
chemicals and fertilizers from time to time.

F. other Revenue:

Interest income :

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method (“EIR that is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial assets.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases or on properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in other non-operating income in the statement of profit and loss.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for as when admitted by the concerned authority.

L. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earning per
earning per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity share that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

4. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
related disclosures.

Significant management judgements

a) Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized.

b) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

¢) Contingent liabilities- At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

d) Provisions - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects,
the company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.



Significant estimates

a) Impairment of financial assets - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. Further, management also considers the factors
that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and
country in which the customer operates.

b) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.



KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Statement of Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(Rs in Lakhs)

Note As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
PARTICULARS No (Audited) (Audited)
ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
a) Property, Plant & Equipment 5 6.44 7.85
b) Right to Use Assets
c) Intangible Assets 6 4.44 4.88
d) Capital work in Progress 7 27.55 24.38
e) Financial Assets
i. Investments 8 2.00 2.00
ii. Loans & Advances 9 581.86 574.46
iii. Others 10 335 0.35
f) Deffered Tax Assets (Net) 11 2.60 2.60
g) Other non-current assets
628.24 616.52
2 Current Assets
a) Inventories 12 1.89 -
b) Financial Assets
i. Investments
ii. Trade Receivables 13 209.40 87.29
iii. Cash and cash equivalent 14 45.72 59.92
iv. Bank Balances
v. Loans and Advances 15 120.62 90.87
vi. Others -
c¢) Other current assets 16 38.40 5.95
416.03 244.04
Total Assets 1,044.27 860.55
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 17 1,018.91 1,018.91
b) Other equity 18 -13.52 -183.37
1,005.39 835.54
2 Liabilities
Non-current liabilites
a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Others
b) Provisions
¢) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
d) Other Non-current liabilities
Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Lease Liability
iii. Trade Payables 19 1.25 1.92
iv. Others 20 20.52 21.02
b) Other current liabilities 21 17.10 2.07
¢) Provisions
d) Current tax liabilities (Net)
38.87 25.02
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,044.27 860.55
Significant Accounting Policies "3"

The accompanying Notes 2, 4 to 40 are an integral part of this balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

N K Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CAN K Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 046785

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023

For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited

Mr. Mehroof Manalody
Managing Director

Mr. Vinod Narsale
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023

Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Joint Managing Director

Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Company Secretary




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Statement of Standalone Profit And Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2023.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Y ear Ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
PARTICULARS Note No (Audited) (Audited)
Revenue from operation 22 650.04 319.66
Other Income 23 37.63 32.66
Total Revenue 687.66 352.32
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of stock in trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress
and stock in trade 24 -1.89
Employee benefit expenses 25 87.24 49.15
Finance costs 26 0.74 0.69
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 27 2.67 291
Other expenses 28 429.05 508.26
Total Expenses 517.81 561.02
Profit before Exceptional Items & Tax (3-4) 169.86 -208.70
Exceptional items
Pofit / (loss) before tax 169.86 -208.70
Tax expenses 29
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax 0.00 0.02
Short/ (excess) tax provision of earlier years
T otal tax expenses (Net) 0.00 0.02
Net Profit / (loss) for the year 169.85 -208.72
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Less : Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income/ Loss (net of taxes) - -
Total Comprehensive Income 169.85 -208.72
Earnings Per Share 30
a) Basic (in Rs) 1.67 -2.05
b) Diluted (in Rs) 1.67 -2.05
Significant Accounting Policies "3"

The accompanying Notes 2, 4 to 40 are an integral part of this balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

N K Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 046785

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023

For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited

Mr. Mehroof Manalody
Managing Director

Mr. Vinod Narsale
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023

Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Joint Managing Director

Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Company Secretary



KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

A. Equity Share Capital (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,01,89,098 1,018.91 1,01,89,098 1,018.91
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,01,89,098 1,018.91 1,01,89,098 1,018.91
B. Other Equity (Rs in Lakhs)

Reserve and Surplus Other Total
Securities . . Comprehensive
. . Retained Earnings

Particulars Premium Income
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year
01.04.2021 - 25.35 - 25.35
Movement during the year - -208.72 - -208.72
Balance at the end of the reporting period
31.03.2022 - -183.37 - -183.37
Movement during the year - 169.85 - 169.85
Balance at the end of the reporting period
31.03.2023 - -13.52 - -13.52

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

N K Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 046785

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023

For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors

Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited

Mr. Mehroof Manalody
Managing Director

Mr. Vinod Narsale
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023

Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Joint Managing Director

Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Company Secretary



KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED

Audited Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
(Audited)

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 169.86 (208.70)
Adjusted for :
Depreciation 2.67 291
Sundry debtors written off 272.14
Loss on sale of Asset 39.43
Interest received (36.58) -33.91 (32.66) 281.82

135.95 73.12
Operating Profit / Loss before Working Capital Changes 135.95 73.12
Changes in Working Capital
Adjusted for increase / decrease in operating Assets :
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (122.11) (58.71)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Asset (32.45) 26.61
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances (3.00) 70.01
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances & Others (29.75) (25.01)
(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Asset
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (1.89)
Adjusted for increase / decrease in operating Liabilities :
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 0.67) (2.12)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilites Financial Liability (Others) (0.50) 2.46
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liability 15.03 0.68
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions
Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations (175.34) 13.92
Tax Paid / (Refund) -
Net Cash from Operating Activities (39.39) 87.04
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in shares 20.57
FD Placed 26.11 (22.99)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (3.99) (1.40)
Sale of Fixed Assets 0.18

22.12 (3.64)

Net Cash generated / (used in) Investing Activities 22.12 (3.64)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Shares -
Premium Received on issue of shares -
Loan Given (7.40) (86.49)
Interest received on loan given 36.58 32.66
Net Cash from Financing Activities 29.18 (53.83)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 11.90 29.56
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 32.96 3.40
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 44.86 32.96

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

N K Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 046785

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023

For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited

Mr. Mehroof Manalody
Managing Director

Mr. Vinod Narsale
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023

Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Joint Managing Director

Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Company Secretary




PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note 5. Tangible Assets

(Rs in Lakhs)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto ‘Written Off Total upto
During The
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2021 During During As at 31.03.2022|  01.04.2021 For the year year 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2022| As at 31.03.2021
The year The year
Air Conditioner 3.54 - - 3.54 2.02 0.21 - 2.23 1.31 1.52
Furniture Fixtures 24.46 - - 24.46 17.30 1.30 - 18.60 5.86 7.15
Office Equipments 4.29 - - 429 3.78 0.07 - 3.85 0.44 0.51
Computer 53.25 - - 53.25 52.84 0.26 - 53.10 0.15 0.41
Electrical Equipment 0.51 - - 0.51 0.50 0.00 - 0.50 0.01 0.01
Cycle 0.02 - - 0.02 0.02 - 0.02 - -
EPBX System 0.47 - - 0.47 0.41 0.01 - 0.42 0.05 0.06
Camera & Accessories 0.19 - - 0.19 0.16 0.00 - 0.16 0.03 0.03
TOTAL 86.74 - - 86.74 77.04 1.85 - 78.89 7.85 9.70
Note 6. Intangible Assets
(Rs in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL T otal upto T otal upto
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2021 During During As at 31.03.2022|  01.04.2021 For the year | Adjustment 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2022| As at 31.03.2021
The year The year
Trademark 4.18 0.90 5.08 3.90 0.11 - 4.00 1.08 0.28
Intellectual Property Rights 9.50 - - 9.50 4.75 0.95 - 5.70 3.80 4.75
TOTAL 13.68 0.90 - 14.58 8.65 1.06 - 9.70 4.88 5.03
Note 7. Capital Work in Progress
(Rs in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL T otal upto T otal upto
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2021 During During As at 31.03.2022|  01.04.2021 For the year | Adjustment 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2022| As at 31.03.2021
The year The year
E Application and E-Programe 8.35 0.50 0.18 8.67 - - - - 8.67 8.35
Portal for recruitment training and
Placement 15.71 - - 15.71 - - - - 15.71 15.71
TOTAL 24.06 0.50 0.18 24.38 - - - - 24.38 24.06
a) Capital Ageing Schedule
CWIP for a period of Projects in Progress Total
Less than 1 Year 0.32 0.32
1-2 Years 0.98 0.98
2-3 Years 1.51 1.51
More than 3 Years 21.57 21.57
Total 24.38 24.38




PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note 5. Tangible Assets

(Rs in Lakhs)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Written Off Total upto
During The
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2022 During During As at 31.03.2023|  01.04.2022 For the year year 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
The year The year
Air Conditioner 3.54 - - 3.54 223 0.18 - 2.41 1.12 1.31
Furniture Fixtures 24.46 - - 24.46 18.60 1.06 - 19.66 4.80 5.86
Office Equipments 4.29 - - 4.29 3.85 0.06 - 3.91 0.38 0.44
Computer 53.25 - - 53.25 53.10 0.10 - 53.20 0.06 0.15
Electrical Equipment 0.51 - - 0.51 0.50 0.00 - 0.50 0.01 0.01
Cycle 0.02 - - 0.02 0.02 - 0.02 - -
EPBX System 0.47 - - 0.47 0.42 0.01 - 0.43 0.04 0.05
Camera & Accessories 0.19 - - 0.19 0.16 0.00 - 0.16 0.03 0.03
TOTAL 86.74 - - 86.74 78.88 1.41 - 80.30 6.44 7.85
Note 6. Intangible Assets
(Rs in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2022 During During As at 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 For the year | Adjustment 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
The year The year
Trademark 5.08 0.82 5.90 4.00 0.31 - 431 1.59 1.08
Intellectual Property Rights 9.50 - - 9.50 5.70 0.95 - 6.65 2.85 3.80
TOTAL 14.58 0.82 - 15.40 9.70 1.26 - 10.96 4.44 4.88
Note 7. Capital Work in Progress
(Rs in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2022 During During As at 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 For the year | Adjustment 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
The year The year
E Application and E-Programe 8.67 3.17 - 11.84 - - - - 11.84 8.67
Portal for recruitment training and
Placement 15.71 - - 15.71 - - - - 15.71 15.71
TOTAL 24.38 3.17 - 27.55 - - - - 27.55 24.38
a) Capital Ageing Schedule
CWIP for a period of Projects in Progress Total
Less than 1 Year 3.17 3.17
1-2 Years 0.32 0.32
2-3 Years 0.98 0.98
More than 3 Years 23.08 23.08
Total 27.55 27.55




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs

Note 8. INVESTMENT (Non Current)

[ As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

In in Subsidiary and wholly owned Company

Shares of Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited
(10,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)

Shares of Keerti Institute India Private Limited
(10,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)

* Refer Note 34

*

1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
2.00 2.00

Note 9. LOANS AND ADVANCES (Non Current)

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Considered good - Unsecured

Loans and advances to related parties*
Loan to Keerti Institute India Pvt Ltd
Loan to Keerti Tutorial India Pvt Ltd

* Refer Note 34

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to prom

327 327.49
254 246.97
581.86 574.46

a) Loans and advances to promoters, Directors, KMP's and related party
oters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act,

Total Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors, KMP
Parties

and Related

574.46

2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are : |
As at 31st March 2023
Type of Borrower [¢] ding Loans % to (A)
Promoters -
Directors -
KMPs -
Related Parties 581.86 100
Total Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors, KMP and Related
Parties 581.86
Total Loans and Advances in the nature of Loan and éldvances (A) 581.86
As at 31st March 2022
Type of Borrower [¢] ding Loans % to (A)
Promoters -
Directors -
KMPs -
Related Parties 574.46 100

Total Loans and Advances in the nature of Loan and ;Aldvances (A)

574.46

Note 10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Others

Other Advances
Security Deposit

3.35

0.35

3.35

0.35

Note 11. DEFFERED TAX ASSETS (Net)

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Deffered Tax

2.60

2.60

2.60

2.60

Note 12. INVENTORIES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Closing Stock

1.89

1.89

Note 13. TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Considered good - Unsecured 209.40 87.29
Less:
Allowance for Bad and doubtfull debts -
209.40 87.29
Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2023
. Outstanding for following period the due date of payments
Particulars
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years | More than 3 Years Total
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 209.40 - - - 209.40
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
209.40 - - - 209.40
Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2022
Particulars o] ding for following period the due date of payments
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years | More than 3 Years Total
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 76.67 - - - 76.67
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - 10.62 10.62
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
76.67 - - 10.62 87.29

Note 14.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Cash in Hand
Balances in Bank
Fixed Deposit with bank

7.56 6.45
37.31 26.53
0.85 26.95
45.72 59.92

Note 15. LOANS AND ADVANCES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Interest Receivable®

* Refer Note 34

120.62

90.87

120.62

90.87

Note 16. OTHER CURRENT ASSET

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Preliminary Expenses to the extent not written off
Balance with Revenue Authority
Advances

- 1.60
3.70 3.37
34.70 0.98
38.40 5.95




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)

Note 17. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022

A) Authorised,Issued,Subscribed and paid up Share Capital

and par value per share

Authorised Share Capital

1,10,000,00 Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 1,100.00 1,100.00
1,100.00 1,100.00

Issued,subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

1,01,89,098 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up. 1018.91 1,018.91
1,018.91 1,018.91

entitled to one vote per share.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

B) Reconciliation of no. of shares

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Opening

1,01,89,098

1,01,89,098

Add: Bonus shares issued during the year

Add: Prefrential shares issued during the year

Add: Issued during the year

Closing

1,01,89,098

1,01,89,098

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the|
Company

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

In Equity Shares
Sudhakar Sonawane
No of Shares

% Holding In Class

Chajjer Roychand Chenraj
No of Shares
% Holding In Class

G-Tec Education Private Limited
No of Shares
% Holding In Class

20,49,650
20.12%)|

20,38,070
20.00%|

20,38,070
20.00%!|

61,25,685
60.12%

Details of Promoters

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

In Equity Shares
Sudhakar Sonawane
No of Shares

% total shares

% change during the year

Chajjer Roychand Chenraj
No of Shares

% total shares

% change during the year

G-Tec Education Private Limited
No of Shares

% total shares

% change during the year

20,49,650
20.12%
-40.00%

20,38,070
20.00%
20.00%|

20,38,070
20.00%|
20.00%

61,25,685
60.12%

0.00%

0.00%

Note 18. OTHER EQUITY

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year
Movement during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Surplus in Profit and loss Account
Balance at the beginning of the year
|Add: Profit for the year

Less: Appropriations
Issue of Bonus Shares to Shareholders
Proposed Dividend (Including Corporate Dividend Tax)
Deferred Tax

Balance at the end of the year

-183.37 25.35
169.86 |- 208.70
-13.52 |- 183.35

0.00 0.02

0.00 0.02
-13.52 |- 183.37
-13.52 |- 183.37

Note 19. TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Trade Payables for expenses & Services

Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total outstanding due to creditors other than micro-enterprises
land small enterprises

1.25

1.92

1.25

1.92

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises : Refer Note 37

The Company has not received the required information from Su

pplicrs regarding their status

under the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006. Hence, disclosure relating to amounts unpaid as at the period end
together with interest paid / payble as required under the said Act have not been made.

|Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2023

0 ing for following period the due date of payments
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 23 Vears | Morethan| g
3 Years
MSME - - - - -
Others 1.25 - - - 1.25
Disputed - MSME . R . . B
Disputed - Others - - - - -
1.25 N N N 1.25
Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2022
o] for ing period the due date of payments
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total
3 Years
MSME - - - - -
Others 1.27 0.65 - - 1.92
Disputed - MSME - - - - -
Disputed - Others - - - - -
1.27 0.65 - - 1.92

Note 20. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Employee Benefit provisions

Salaries payable
Others
Liability For Expenses

17.43 6.55
3.10 14.47
20.52 21.02

Note 21. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Statutory Dues

17.10

2.07

17.10

2.07




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31S8T, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note 22. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

For the year ended 31st
March 2022

Gross Sales and Royalty Receipts

650.04

319.66

650.04

319.66

Note 23.0THER INCOME

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Interest received on Loan given to related parties*
Interest on IT refund

Other Interest

Court Case Settlement

March 2023 March 2022
35.14 32.03
0.13 0.39
1.31 0.24
1.05 -
37.63 32.66

* Refer Note 34

Note 24. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

For the year ended 31st
March 2022

(Increase)/ Decrease in stock
At year end
At the beginning of the year

1.89

-1.89

Note 25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Salaries Wages and Bonus
Staff Welfare Expenses
Director Remuneration

March 2023 March 2022
48.35 31.19
0.27 1.96
38.62 16.01
87.24 49.15

Note 26. FINANCE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Interest paid
Bank Charges

March 2023 March 2022
0.00 0.66
0.73 0.03
0.74 0.69

Note 27. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION CHARGES

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

For the year ended 31st
March 2022

Depreciation & Amortization

2.67

291

2.67

291

Note 28. OTHER EXPENSES

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

March 2023 March 2022
Payment made to auditors
- Audit fees 2.00 2.00
Advertisment Expenses 12.05 8.69
Computer Education Related Expenses 17.21 4.02
Conveyance & Travelling 10.60 529
Commission charges 0.28 -
Electricity Charges 3.02 1.79
Franchise Expenses * 324.26 121.38
Human Resources Expenses 6.95 -
ITC Disallowed 5.27 1.85
Insurance Expenses 0.06 0.05
Issuer Fees 1.15 0.45
Legal & Professional Charges 9.27 8.93
Loss on Sale of Shares - 39.43
Listing Fees 3.00 3.42
Provision for Bad debts - 272.14
Meeting Expenses 8.45 0.30
Office Expenses 12.05 6.68
Preliminary Expenses written/off 1.60 26.55
Repairs & Maintenance 2.94 1.23
Rent Rates & Taxes 4.48 3.79
Server & Online Media Expenses 4.07 -
Telephone Expenses 0.34 0.28
429.05 508.26

*Refer Note 34

Note 29. TAX EXPENSES

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

For the year ended 31st
March 2022

Current Tax
Tax of previous year
Deferred Tax

0.00

0.02

0.00

0.02

Note 30. EARNING PER SHARE

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

March 2023 March 2022
Profit after Taxation 169.85 -208.72
Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,01,89,098 1,01,89,098
Earnings per share
- Basic (in Rs.) 1.67 -2.05
- Diluted (In Rs.) 1.67 -2.05

Note 31. CONTINGENT LIABILITES AND OTHER MATTERS

For the year ended 31st
March 2022

a) Contigent Liabilites
b) Commitments




Note 32 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
I. The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March.

2022

FVTPL FVTOCI |Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI [Amortised Cost:
Financial Assets
Inventories - - 1.89
Trade Receivables - - 209.40 - - 87.29
Cash and Cash Equivalent - - 45.72 - - 59.92
Loans & Advances - - 120.62 - - 90.87
Other Current Assets - - 38.40 - - 5.95
Total Financial Assets - - 416.03 - - 244.03
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable - - 1.25 - - 1.92
Other Financial Liabilities - - 20.52 - - 21.02
Other Current Liabilities - - 17.10 - - 2.07
Total Financial Liabilities - - 38.87 - - 25.01

1I. Financial Risk Management

The company has exposure to the following risk arising from fiancial instruments:

- Credit Risk
- Liquidity Risk; and
- Market Risk

i.  Risk management framework

The company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The board of directors has established the processes to ensure that executive management controls risks through the
mechanism of property defined framework.
The Company's risk management polices are establised to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limites and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the

board annually to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their

roles and obligations.

The Company's Audit Committee oversees compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight

role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to its Audit Committee.

ii. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and losn given.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management

also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate.

The Company Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness

before the company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as fas as
possible , that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilites when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,

without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damange to the Company's reputation.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the cash flows generated from

operations to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities and cash

and cash equivalent on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by the
company. In additon, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering

the level of liquid assets nacessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidty ratios against internal and external requlatory
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

a) Maturities of financial liablites

The following are the remaing contracutal maturities of financial liabilites at the reporting date.

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Contractual

Particulars Contractual cash flows :

Carrying cash flows : Carrying With in 1

Amount Total With in 1 Years| Amount Total Years
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.92 1.92 1.92
Other Financial Liabilities 20.52 20.52 20.52 21.02 21.02 21.02
Other Current Liabilities 17.10 17.10 17.10 2.07 2.07 2.07
Total Financial Liabilities 38.87 38.87 38.87 25.01 25.01 25.01

iv. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices which will affect the
Company' s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control

market exposures withing acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Currency risk : As company does not deals in foreign currencies, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.
Commodity risk: As company deals in services sector , therefore this risk mitigates for the company.

Interest Risk: As the Company does not have any borrowings from outsider, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.

Note 33 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that is will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Compnay consits of Zero debt and having only equity and

internal accurals.

The company's net debt equity ratio is as follows:

Particulars 31.03.2023  |31.03.2022
Net debt 0 0
Equity 1,005.39 835.54
Debt/ Equity ratio - -




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED

Note 34 : Related Party transactions

Details of related parties:

Description of relationship

Names of related parties

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing

Director)

Roychand Chenraj (Chairman Non
Exec) w.e.f 12-12-2022

Mehroof Manalody (Managing

Director) w.e.f 12-12-2022
Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12

12-2022

Archana Sanjay Saini (Independent
Director;

Manish Heeralal Chandak
Independent Director;

Rajvirendra Singh (Independent

Director)

Tanual Raju Sonawane (Director)

[upto 12-12-2022

Soniya Bhatia (Independent Director)

w.e.f28-12-2022

Vinod Narsale (CFO)

P V Vinod (Director : COO) w.e.f 12-

12-2022

Priyanka Pandey (CS) from

21.10.2021

Mahipal Chauhan (CS) upto

30.09.2021

Wholly owned Subsidiary of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Keerti Institute India Private Limited

Wholly owned Subsidiary of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited

Relative of Director's

Sangeeta Sonawane
Tanul Sonawane

Santosh Sonawane
Nutan Sonawane

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.

Details of transactions with related parties as on 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 :-

(Rs in Lakhs)|

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

Non Current Assets : Loans & Advances

Keerti Institute India Private Limited - 49.22
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited 7.40 37.27
Other Current Assets

Keerti Institute India Private Limited (Advance) 34.20 -
Other Income
| Interest received on Loan

Keerti Institute India Private Limited 19.65 18.58
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited 15.49 13.45
Payment to key M Personnel

Remuneration to directors

dhak (Joint Managing Director) 36.00 12.03

Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12-12-2022 2.62 3.98
Indirect Expenses

Royalty expenses

Keerti Institute India Pvt Ltd 324.26 121.38
| Sitting fees

Archana Sanjay Saini 0.13 0.15
Manish Heeralal Chandak 0.13 0.18
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 0.23 0.18
Tanul Raju Sonawane 0.13 0.18
Soniya Bhatia 0.05 -
[Rent

Sudhakar Sonawane 2.05 1.86
Sangeeta Sonawane 2.05 1.86
[ Salary _
Santosh Sonawane 2.07 291
Tanul Sonawane 0.64 -
Vinod Narsale 9.00 6.76
P V Vinod 15.00 8.12
Priyanka Pandey 4.36 1.87
Mahipal Chauhan - 2.03

Balance Outstanding of Related Party as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
| Sitting Fees bl
Archana Sanjay Saini 0.05 0.18
Manish Heeralal Chandak 0.05 0.18
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 0.05 0.18
Tanul Raju Sonawane - 0.03
Soniya Bhatia 0.05 -
Salary bl
Vinod Narsale 0.90 0.39
P V Vinod 1.68 0.60
Tanul Sonawane 0.18 -
Priyanka Pandey 0.40 0.35
Santosh Sonawane 0.14 0.13
R ation to directors bl

dhak (Joint Managing Director) 13.38 2.00
Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12-12-2022 - 0.20
| Rent (Payable]
Sudhakar Sonawane - 1.86
Sangeeta Sonawane - 1.86
Non Current Assets : Investment
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited 1.00 1.00
Keerti Institute India Private Limited 1.00 1.00
Current Assets: Loans & Advances (Receivable)
Keerti Institute India Private Limited 77.63 6193
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited 42.97 29.03
Other Current Assets (Receivable
Keerti Institute India Private Limited (Advance) 34.20 -
| Non Current Assets : Loans & Advances
|R
Keerti Institute India Private Limited 32749 32749
Keerti Tutorial India Private Limited 254.37 246.97

Note 35: SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company's business activity falls within a single reportable business segment, viz, Information Technology.



Note No 36 : All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current-non current classification of assets and liabilities.

Note No 37 :Micro and Small Enterprises

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

Amount due to vendor -

a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon -

b) the amount of interest paid -

c¢) the amount of interest due and payable -

d) the amount of interest accured and remaining unpaid -

e) the amount further interest remaining due and payable -

Note No 38 : Other Statutory Information

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company
for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as survey or
survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any banks / financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets during the current year or
previous year.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies
(Restrictions on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company has not obtained any term loans from banks and financial institution during the year.

The Company does not have any transactions and outstanding balances during the current as well previous year with Companies struck off
under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Note No 39 : Ratio : As per " Annexure A"

Note No 40 : Figures of the previous year have been regrouped, reclassified and/or rearranged whenever necessary to compare with the
figures of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Mehroof Manalody Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Partner Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 046785

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023 Mumbai, April 25th , 2023




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013(the “Act”)in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) And other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Group as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibility under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of ethics issued by the Institute of
Charted Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, managements is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing , as a applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected on influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:



e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charges with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulations precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account.



d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Group’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as on
31st March2023.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iil. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Group.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Intermediaries’, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Funding Parties’, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

vi. Based on our audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) contain any material mis-statements

vii. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

For N K Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 113281W

N K Mittal

(Partner)

Membership Number: 046785
UDIN: 23046785BGWMSX5593

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25" April, 2023



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Act.

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KEERTI
KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) in
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statement of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
incorporated in India, to the extent applicable, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our Responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the
standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our Audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, during the audit of Holding Company, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting; for providing an opinion on the internal financial controls system of the Subsidiary



Companies which are not incorporated in India (Foreign Subsidiaries) we have relied upon the audit opinion
given by their respective auditors in reference to the same.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6.

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purpose in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaction and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the
Management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies Incorporated in
India, to the extent applicable, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For N K MITTAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 113281W

CANKMITTAL

(Partner)

Membership Number: 046785
UDIN: 23046785BGWMSX5593

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25™ April, 2023.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited (“the Holding”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”) is a Public Limited Company, incorporated in India having its registered office at
Unit No 12/A, Ninth Floor, A-Wing, Pinnacle Corporate Park, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051.
The equity shares of the Group are listed on NSE Limited.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION:
A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for issue on
25" April, 2023.

B. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Group’s functional currency.
C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. The following items
are measured on each reporting date as under:

o Defined Benefit plans- plan assets at fair value
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell as asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

D. Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actual result may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.



Judgments:

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements have been given below:

Classification of leases into finance or operating lease

Whether an arrangement contains a lease.

Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and assessment
of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties:

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the subsequent period financial statements is included below:

Estimation of current and deferred tax expense and asset/ liability.

Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation.

Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies.

Impairment of trade receivables.

E. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions
turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimated and
judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in
respect of the periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and
the expected residual value at the end of its life.

The useful lives and residual values of Group’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
acquired. The lives are based on historical experience with similar as well as anticipation of future events, which
may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits are evaluated with reference to uncertain events and based
upon actuarial assumptions including among others discount rates, expected rates of return on plan assets,
expected rates of salary increases, estimated retirement dates, mortality rates. The significant assumptions used to
account for employees benefits are described in Note no K.



3. Revenue Recognition
The Group assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the
contract. Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The Group allocates the
elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable
evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations. The Group exercises judgement in
determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. Provisions
for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become
probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

4. Leases
The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgment in assessing the lease
term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally based on the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

5. Loss allowance for receivables
The Group determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to reflect
current and estimated future economic conditions. The Group considered current and anticipated future economic
conditions relating to industries the Group deals with and the countries where it operates. In calculating expected
credit loss, the Group has also considered credit reports and other related credit information for its customers to
estimate the probability of default in future and has taken into account estimates of possible effect from the
pandemic relating to COVID -19.

6. Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

7. Contingencies
On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies and
obligations. Obligations relating to project executions is largely depended upon performance of services by
respective contractors for contingent losses that are considered Probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an
accrual in financial statements. Loss contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed
as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not
disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognised until the contingency has been
resolved ad amounts are received or receivable.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets: An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group's normal operating cycle;

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;



c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

Liabilities: A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) It is expected to be settled in the Group's normal operating cycle;

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:;

c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other assets/ liabilities are classified as noncurrent. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in Cash or cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its
normal operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of Current / Noncurrent classification of assets and
liabilities.

B. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

PPE is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits
availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Property, plant and equipment
acquired on hire purchase basis are recognized at their cash values. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are
capitalized in accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

For transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured as
per I-GAAP less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of 1st April, 2019.

PPE not ready for the Ended use on the Balance Sheet date is disclosed as "capital work in-progress.

Depreciation is recognized using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than freehold
land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation,
over the useful life so determined.

Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at
each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value is accounted on
prospective basis.

Depreciation on additions to / deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use.
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An item of Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when it is estimated that Group will not receive future
economic benefits from its use or upon its disposal. Any gains and losses on disposal of such item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

C. Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual values are determined based on technical parameters /
assessment, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions
of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance support, etc.

The estimated useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment is aligned to the useful life specified under Schedule II
to the Companies Act, 2013 except useful life for computing depreciation in the following case:

Assets Useful Life (Years)
Buildings 30 - 60
Plant and Machinery 8-20
Office Equipment 5
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8-10
Computers 3
Energy Saving Equipment 15
Pollution Control Equipment 15
Electric Installations 10
The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair

approximation of the period over which the Property, Plant and Equipment are likely to be used.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition or
installation, and in the case of a new project, from the date of commencement of commercial production.

Depreciation on an item of property, plant and equipment sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped, is provided up to the
date on which such item of property, plant and equipment is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped.

The Group reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

D. Impairment of assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment property,
intangible assets and investments in subsidiary Group to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are tested for impairment so as to
determine the impairment loss, if any. The intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for impairment each
year.



Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is determined:

a) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and
b) in the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of the cash generating unit's net selling price and the value in use.

The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is
determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Group suitably adjusted for risks specified to the
estimated cash flows of the asset

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such
deficit is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognized for the asset
(or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments
1) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Financial assets are subsequently classified
as measured at

amortized cost

fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes
its business model for managing financial assets.

Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost;



At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost has impaired and
provisions are made for impairment accordingly. A financial asset is 'credit impaired’ when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward
looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

if) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they are
classified as fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in fair
value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

iii) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a

legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on



future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of fixed assets are capitalised as part of cost of the

assets, up to the date the asset is put to use. Other Borrowing cost is charged to Statement of Profit & loss in the
year in which they are incurred.

. Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in statement of profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses the Group recognizes a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets- unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized
/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no
longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolesces and damages as
under:

(i) Raw and packing materials, stores and spares including fuel: At Cost on FIFO basis



(ii) Stock in trade and Finished Goods: At Cost plus appropriate overheads

Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out (FIFO) basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and
other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to
more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

Provision and contingent liabilities

The Group sets up a provision when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
and it will probably require an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or where
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of
the management/ independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect
the current management estimate.

. Revenue recognition

A. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

B. Revenues from Products are recognized at a point in time when control of the goods passes to the customer,
usually upon delivery of the goods.

C. The Group Presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

D. Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which may also refer as unbilled revenues)
while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which may also refer to as unearned
revenues).

E. Government Subsidy
Subsidy has been recognized by the Group on the basis of the notification received from the ministry of
chemicals and fertilizers from time to time.



F. other Revenue:

Interest income :

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method (“EIR that is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial assets.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases or on properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in other non-operating income in the statement of profit and loss.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for as when admitted by the concerned authority.

L. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earning per earning
per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity share that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

4. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
related disclosures.

Significant management judgements

a) Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Group's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized.

b) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

¢) Contingent liabilities- At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However,
the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

d) Provisions - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects,
the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

a) Impairment of financial assets - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. Further, management also considers the factors



that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and
country in which the customer operates.

b) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.



KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LTD
Statement of Consolidated Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023
(Rs in Lakhs)

Note As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
PARTICULARS No (Audited) (Audited)
ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
a) Property, Plant & Equipment 5 76.63 78.42
b) Right to Use Assets
c¢) Intangible Assets 6 4.44 4.88
d) Capital work in Progress 7 27.55 24.38
e) Financial Assets
i. Investments - -
ii. Loans & Advances
iii. Others 8 33.97 32.81
f) Deffered Tax Assets (Net) 9 17.02 14.96
g) Other non-current assets -
159.61 155.44
2 Current Assets
a) Inventories 10 3.36 3.84
b) Financial Assets
i. Investments
ii. Trade Receivables 11 379.25 232.09
iii. Cash and cash equivalent 12 53.65 63.32
iv. Bank Balances
v. Loans and Advances 13 11.00 -
vi. Others
¢) Other current assets 14 19.26 49.13
466.52 348.39
Total Assets 626.13 503.83)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 15 1,018.91 1,018.91
b) Other equity 16 -506.12 -636.41
512.79 382.50
2 Liabilities
Non-current liabilites
a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Others
b) Provisions
¢) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
d) Other Non-current liabilities
Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Lease Liability
iii. Trade Payables 17 14.82 34.29
iv. Others 18 70.43 58.55
b) Provision
¢) Other current liabilities 19 28.09 28.48
d) Current tax liabilities (Net) -
113.34 121.31
Total Equity and Liabilities 626.13 503.82
Significant Accounting Policies "3"

The accompanying Notes 2, 4 to 38 are an integral part of this balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

N K Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal

Partner

Membership No. 046785

Mumbai, 25th April, 2023

Mr. Mehroof Manalody
Managing Director

Mr. Vinod Narsale
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, 25th April, 2023

For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited

Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Joint Managing Director

Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Company Secretary




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
Statement of Consolidated Audited Profit And Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2023

(Rs in Lakhs)

Year Ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
PARTICULARS Note No| (Audited) (Audited)
Revenue from operation 20 830.24 491.00
Other Income 21 25.39 0.62
Total Revenue 855.63 491.62
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed -
Purchases of stock in trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress
and stock in trade 22 0.48 1.85
Employee benefit expenses 23 155.54 109.88
Finance costs 24 3.55 0.76
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 25 37.15 29.45
Other expenses 26 530.71 762.38
Total Expenses 727.43 904.32
Profit before Exceptional ltems & Tax (3-4) 128.21 -412.70
Exceptional items
Pofit / (loss) before tax 128.21 -412.70
Tax expenses 27
Current Tax
Deferred Tax 2.08 1.12
Short/ (excess) tax provision of earlier years - 0.71
Total tax expenses (Net) 2.08 1.83
Net Profit / (loss) for the year 130.29 -412.34
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Less : Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Other Comprehensive Income/ Loss (net of taxes)
Total Comprehensive Income 130.29 -412.34
Earnings Per Share 28
a) Basic (in Rs) 1.28 -4.05
b) Diluted (in Rs) 1.28 -4.05
Significant Accounting Policies "3"

The accompanying Notes 2, 4 to 38 are an integral part of this balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

N K Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 046785

Mumbai, 25th April, 2023

For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited

Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Joint Managing Director

Mr. Mehroof Manalody
Managing Director

Mr. Vinod Narsale
Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Company Secretary

Mumbai, 25th April, 2023



KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

A. Equity Share Capital

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,01,89,098 1,018.91 1,01,89,098 1,018.91
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,01,89,098 1,018.91 1,01,89,098 1,018.91

B. Other Equity

(Rs in Lakhs)

Reserve and Surplus Other J Total
Securities ) . Comprehensiv
Particulars Premium Retained Earnings Income

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year

01.04.2021 - -224.05 - -224.05
Movement during the year - -412.37 - -412.37
Balance at the end of the reporting period

31.03.2022 - -636.42 - -636.42
Movement during the year - 130.29 - 130.29
Balance at the end of the reporting period

31.03.2023 - -506.13 - -506.13

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

N K Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 046785

Mumbai, 25th April, 2023

Mr. Mehroof Manalody
Managing Director

Mr. Vinod Narsale
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, 25th April, 2023

For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited

Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Joint Managing Director

Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Company Secretary




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED

Audited Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2023

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
(Audited) (Audited)

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 128.21 (412.75)
Adjusted for :
Depreciation 37.15 29.45
Expenses written off -3.18
Sundry debtors written off - 311.15
Loss on sale of Investment - 39.43
Interest received -1.63 32.34 (0.62) 379.41

160.55 (33.34)
Operating Profit / Loss before Working Capital Changes 160.55 (33.34
Changes in Working Capital
Adjusted for increase / decrease in operating Assets :
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (147.14) (113.24)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Asset 29.87 41.00
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances (1.16) 69.71
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances & Others (11.00) (19.10)
(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Asset - 26.71
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 0.48 1.85
Adjusted for increase / decrease in operating Liabilities :
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (16.29) 8.16
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilites Financial Liability (Others) 11.89 55.02
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liability (0.39) 21.32
Increase/(Decrease) in Current tax Liabilities (net) - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions - -
Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations (133.74 91.43
Tax Paid / (Refund) (0.71)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 26.81 57.38
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in shares 20.57
FD Placed 26.11 (23.00)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (38.09) (26.21)
Sale of Fixed Assets - -

(11.98) (28.64)
Net Cash generated / (used in) Investing Activities (11.98 (28.64
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Shares - -
Premium Received on issue of shares - -
Interest received 1.63 0.62
Net Cash from Financing Activities 1.63 0.62
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 16.46 29.36
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 36.37 7.01
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 52.83 36.37

Notes :

1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flow'
2. The Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary in order to conform to this year's presentation.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of

N K Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 046785

Mumbai, 25th April, 2023

For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited

Mr. Mehroof Manalody
Managing Director

Mr. Vinod Narsale
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, 25th April, 2023

Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Joint Managing Director

Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Company Secretary




Note 5. Tangible Assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Rs in Lakhs)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Written Off Total upto
During The
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2021 During During As at 31.03.2022] 01.04.2021 For the year year 31.03.2022 |As at 31.03.2022|As at 31.03.2021
The year The year
Air Conditioner 13.17 2.79 - 15.96 9.62 1.33 - 10.95 5.01 3.55
Furniture Fixtures 124.08 11.41 - 135.50 70.44 14.79 - 85.24 50.26 53.64
Office Equipments 24.71 5.01 - 29.72 20.54 2.44 - 22.98 6.74 4.17
Computer 149.15 5.78 - 154.93 128.79 9.82 - 138.61 16.31 20.35
Electrical Equipment 0.51 - - 0.51 0.50 0.00 - 0.50 0.01 0.01
Cycle 0.02 - - 0.02 0.02 - 0.02 - -
EPBX System 0.47 - - 0.47 0.41 0.01 - 0.42 0.05 0.06
Camera & Accessories 0.19 - - 0.19 0.16 0.00 - 0.16 0.03 0.03
TOTAL 312.30 25.00 - 337.30 230.49 28.40 - 258.88 78.42 81.82
Note 6. Intangible Assets
(Rs in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2021 During During As at 31.03.202p  01.04.2021 For the year| Adjustment 31.03.2022 |As at 31.03.2022|As at 31.03.2021
The year The year
Trademark 4.18 0.90 5.08 3.90 0.11 - 4.00 1.08 0.28
Intellectual Property Rights 9.50 - - 9.50 4.75 0.95 - 5.70 3.80 4.75
TOTAL 13.68 0.90 - 14.58 8.65 1.06 - 9.70 4.88 5.03
Note 7. Capital Work in Progress
(Rs in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2021 During During As at 31.03.2022]  01.04.2021 | For the year | Adjustment 31.03.2022 |As at 31.03.2022|As at 31.03.2021
The year The year
E Application and E-Programe 8.35 0.50 0.18 8.67 - - - - 8.67 8.35
Portal for recruitment training and|
Placement 15.71 - - 15.71 - - - - 15.71 15.71
TOTAL 24.06 0.50 0.18 24.38 - - - - 24.38 24.06
a) Capital Ageing Schedule
CWIP for a period of Projects in Progress Total
Less than 1 Y ear 032 032
1-2 Years 0.98 0.98
2-3 Years 1.51 1.51
More than 3 Y ears 21.57 21.57
Total 24.38 24.38



Note 5. Tangible Assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Rs in Lakhs)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Written Off Total upto
During The
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2022 During During As at 31.03.2028 01.04.2022 | For the year year 31.03.2023 |As at 31.03.2023|As at 31.03.2022
The year The year
Air Conditioner 15.96 0.95 - 16.92 10.95 2.12 - 13.07 3.85 5.01
Furniture Fixtures 135.50 23.80 591 153.39 85.24 16.25 - 101.49 51.90 50.26
Office Equipments 29.72 1.68 1.11 30.28 22.98 3.01 - 25.99 4.30 6.74
Computer 154.93 14.69 - 169.61 138.61 14.50 - 153.11 16.50 16.31
Electrical Equipment 0.51 - - 0.51 0.50 - - 0.50 0.01 0.01
Cycle 0.02 - - 0.02 0.02 - - 0.02 - -
EPBX System 0.47 - - 0.47 0.42 0.01 - 0.43 0.04 0.05
Camera & Accessories 0.19 - - 0.19 0.16 0.00 - 0.17 0.02 0.03
TOTAL 337.30 41.12 7.02 371.40 258.88 35.89 - 294.77 76.63 78.42
Note 6. Intangible Assets
(Rs in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2022 During During |As at 31.03.2023  01.04.2022 | For the year| Adjustment 31.03.2023 |As at 31.03.2023|As at 31.03.2022]
The year The year
Trademark 5.08 0.82 5.90 4.00 0.31 - 431 1.59 1.08
Intellectual Property Rights 9.50 - - 9.50 5.70 0.95 - 6.65 2.85 3.80
TOTAL 14.58 0.82 - 15.40 9.70 1.26 - 10.96 4.44 4.88
Note 7. Capital Work in Progress
(Rs in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions Deletion TOTAL Total upto Total upto
PARTICULAR As at 01.04.2022 During During  |As at 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 | For the year| Adjustment 31.03.2023 |As at 31.03.2023|As at 31.03.2022
The year The year
E Application and E-Programe 8.67 3.17 - 11.84 - - - - 11.84 8.67
Portal for recruitment training and
Placement 15.71 - - 15.71 - - - - 15.71 15.71
TOTAL 24.38 3.17 - 27.55 - - - - 27.55 24.38
a) Capital Ageing Schedule
CWIP for a period of Projects in Progres| Total
Less than 1 Year 3.17 3.17
1-2 Years 0.32 0.32
2-3 Years 0.98 0.98
More than 3 Years 23.08 23.08
Total 27.55 27.55



KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2023

(Rs in Lakhs)

Note 8. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Others

Other Advances
Security Deposit

33.97

32.81

33.97

32.81

Note 9. DEFFERED TAX ASSETS (Net)

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Deffered Tax

17.02

14.96

17.02

14.96

Note 10. INVENTORIES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Stock in trade

3.36

3.84

3.36

3.84

Note 11.TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Considered good - Unsecured
Less:
Allowance for Bad and doubtfull debts

379.25

232.09

379.25

232.09

Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Years
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 379.25 - - - 379.25
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
379.25 - - - 379.25
Ageing of Trade receivable as on March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years MO;Z:::" 3 Total
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 221.47 - - - 221.47
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - 10.62 10.62
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - -
221.47 - - 10.62 232.09

Note 12.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Cash in Hand
Balances in Bank
Fixed Deposit with bank

9.67 7.47
43.13 2891

0.85 26.95
53.65 63.32

Note 13. LOANS AND ADVANCES

As at 31st March 2023

Advances

11.00

As at 31st March 2022

11.00

Note 14. OTHER CURRENT ASSET

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Preliminary Expenses to the extent not written off
Balance with Revenue Authority

Advances

Others

3.56 28.32
14.70 11.34
1.00 1.18

- 8.30
19.26 49.13




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 318T, 2023

(Rs in Lakhs)

Note 15. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022,

A) Authorised,Issued,Subscribed and paid up Share Capital
and par value per share
Authorised Share Capital

1,10,000,00 Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 1,100.00 1,100.00
1,100.00] 1,100.00]

Issued,subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

1,01,89,098 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up. 1,018.91 1,018.91
1,018.91 1,018.91

to one vote per share.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares entitled

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

B) Reconciliation of no. of shares

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022,

Opening

Add: Bonus shares issued during the year

1,01,89,098

1,01,89,098

Add: Prefrential shares issued during the year

Add: Issued during the year

Closing

1,01,89,098]

1,01,89,098|

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% sharesin the|
Company

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022,

In Equity Shares
Sudhakar Sonawane
No of Shares

% Holding In Class

Chajjer Roychand Chenraj
No of Shares
% Holding In Class

G-Tec Education Private Limited
No of Shares
% Holding In Class

20,49,650
20.12%

20,38,070
20.00%

20,38,070
20.00%

61,25,685
35.84%

Details of Promoters

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

In Equity Shares
Sudhakar Sonawane
No of Shares

% total shares

% change during the year

Chajjer Roychand Chenraj
No of Shares

% total shares

% change during the year

G-Tec Education Private Limited
No of Shares

% total shares

% change during the year

20,49,650
20.12%
-40.00%

20,38,070
20.00%
20.00%

20,38,070
20.00%
20.00%

61,25,685
60.12%

0.00%

0.00%

Note 16. OTHER EQUITY

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year
Movement during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Surplus in Profit and loss Account

Balance at the beginning of the year -636.41 |- 224.04
Add: Profit for the year 130.29 |- 412.37
-506.12 |- 636.41
Less: Appropriations
Issue of Bonus Shares to Shareholders - -
Proposed Dividend (Including Corporate Dividend Tax) - -
Balance at the end of the year -506.12 -636.41
(506.12) (636.41)

Note 17. TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022,

Trade Payables for expenses & Services

Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding due to creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

14.82

34.29

14.82

34.29

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises : Refer Note 35

Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006. Hence, disclosure relati

The Company has not received the required information from Suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and

ing to amounts unpaid as at the period end together with

interest paid / payble as required under the said Act have not been made.

Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following period the due date of payments

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total
3 Years
MSME - - - N N
Others 11.92 2.90 - - 14.82
Disputed - MSME - - - - -
Disputed - Others - - - - -
11.92 2.90 - - 14.82
Ageing of Trade Payable as on March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following period the due date of payments
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total
3 Years
MSME - - - - -
Others 24.16 10.13 - - 34.29
Disputed - MSME - - - - -
Disputed - Others - - - - -
24.16 10.13 - - 34.29

Note 18. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022,

Employee Benéefit provisions

Salaries payable 2252 12.07
Others
Liability For Expenses 46.40 46.48
Advances 1.51 -
70.43 58.55

Note 19. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022,

Statutory Dues

28.09

28.48

28.09

28.48




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2023

(Rs in Lakhs)
Note 20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS For ‘h;;'z;' Zeggsed 3ist | For m,\e/lgre;r;gg;d 3tst
Gross Sales and Royalty Receipts 830.24 491.00
830.24 291.00

Note 21. OTHER INCOME

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

For the year ended 31st
March 2022

Interest on IT Refund
Interest on FD

Excess Provision
Court Case Settlement
Other Income

Sale of Notes

0.31
1.31
3.18
1.05
5.14
14.40

25.39

Note 22. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Opening Stock

Closing Stock

March 2023 March 2022
3.84 5.69
3.84 5.69
3.36 3.84
0.48 1.85

Note 23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

March 2023 March 2022
Salaries Wages and Bonus 110.57 89.11
Staff W elfare Expenses 1.17 2.56
Directors Remuneration 43.80 18.21
155.54 109.88

Note 24. FINANCE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Interest paid
Bank Charges

March 2023 March 2022
2.67 0.66
0.88 0.10
3.55 0.76

Note 25. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION CHARGES

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

For the year ended 31st
March 2022

Depreciation & Amortization

37.15

29.45

37.15

29.45

Note 26. OTHER EXPENSES

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

March 2023 March 2022
Payment made to auditors
- Audit fees 2.00 4.35

Advertisment Expenses 129.80 100.24
Brokerage & Commission 0.28 0.61
Computer Consumables 0.87 0.23
Computer Education Related Expenses 37.25 26.16
Conveyance & Travelling 12.67 6.51
Electricity Charges 14.40 7.50
Faculty Expenses 1.78 2.19
GST Debit - 3.13
Human Resources Expenses 6.95 -
Insurance Expenses 0.06 0.05
Issuer Fees 115 0.45
ITC Disallowed 9.79 3.20
Legal & Professional Charges 28.03 18.67
Listing Fees 3.00 3.42
Loss on Sale of Shares - 39.43
Meeting Expenses 12.20 0.30
Office Expenses 17.19 12.78
Preliminary Expenses written/off 24.76 72.05
Provision for Bad debts - 311.16
Purchase of Notes 10.94 -
Rent Rates & Taxes 84.92 87.52
Repairs & Maintainance 7.70 5.04
Server & Online Media Expenses 9.75 -
Technical Charges 107.52 51.05
Telephone Expenses 2.70 3.39
Web development 5.00 2.97

530.71 762.38

Note 27. TAX EXPENSES

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

For the year ended 31st
March 2022

Current Tax
Tax of previous year
Deferred Tax

0.71
1.12

2.08

1.83

Note 28. EARNING PER SHARE

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

March 2023 March 2022
Profit after Taxation 130.29 -412.34
W eighted Average Number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,01,89,098 1,01,89,098
Earnings per share
- Basic (in Rs.) 1.28 (4.05)
- Diluted (In Rs.) 1.28 (4.05)

Note 29. CONTINGENT LIABILITES AND OTHER MATTERS

For the year ended 31st
March 2023

For the year ended 31st
March 2022

a) Contigent Liabilites
b) Commitments




Note 30 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

i

a

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

(Rs in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Costl  FVTPL FVTOCI Cost

Financial Assets
Inventories - - 3.36 - - 3.84
Trade Receivables - - 379.25 - - 232.09
Cash and Cash Equivalent - - 53.65 - - 63.32
Loans & Advances - - 11.00 - - -
Other Current Assets - - 19.26 - - 49.13
Total Financial Assets - - 466.52 - - 348.39
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable - - 14.82 - - 34.29
Other Financial Liabilities - - 70.43 - - 58.55
Other Current Liabilities - - 28.09 - - 28.48
Current tax Liabilities (Net) - - - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - 113.34 - - 121.31

. Financial Risk Management

The Group has exposure to the following risk arising from fiancial instruments:
Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk; and

Market Risk

Risk management framework

The Group company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group company's risk management
framework. The board of directors has established the processes to ensure that executive management controls risks through the

mechanism of property defined framework.

The Group company's risk management polices are establised to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate

risk limites and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the

board annually to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group company's activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their

roles and obligations.

The Group company's Audit Committee oversees compliance with the Group company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight
role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the

results of which are reported to its Audit Committee.

i. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and loan given.
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management

also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and

country in which customers operate.

The Group Company Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness
before the company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as fas as

possible , that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilites when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,

without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damange to the group's reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the cash flows generated from
operations to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,

the Group's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group liquidity position comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities and cash

and cash equivalent on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and limits set by the
company. In additon, the Group Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering
the level of liquid assets nacessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidty ratios against internal and external requlatory
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liablites
The following are the remaing contracutal maturities of financial liabilites at the reporting date.
(Rs in Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Contractual Contractual
Particulars cash flows : cash flows :
Carrying With in 1 Carrying Within 1
Amount Total Years Amount Total Years
Financial Liabilities
Trade payable 14.82 14.82 14.82 3429 3429 34.29
Other Financial Liabilities 70.43 70.43 70.43 58.55 58.55 58.55
Other Current Liabilities 28.09 28.09 28.09 28.48 28.48 28.48
Current tax Liabilities (Net) - - - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 113.34 113.34 113.34 121.31 121.31 121.31
. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices which will affect the
Company' s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market exposures withing acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk : As group does not deals in foreign currencies, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.

Commodity risk: As group deals in services sector , therefore this risk mitigates for the company.

Interest Risk: As the group does not have any borrowings from outsider, therefore this risk mitigates for the company.

Note 31 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that is will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Compnay consits of Zero debt and having only equity and
internal accurals.

The company's net debt equity ratio is as follows:

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Net debt 0 0
Equity 382.50 794.87
Debt/ Equity ratio - -




KEERTI KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS LIMITED

Note No 32 : Related Party transactions
Details of related parties:

Description of

Names of related parties

Key Management P

Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing Director)

Mehroof Manalody (Managing Director) we.f 12-
022

Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12-12-2022

Roychand Chenraj (Chairman Non Exec) w.e.f 12-
122022

122

Archana Sanjay Saini (Independent Director)

Manish Heeralal Chandak (Independent Director)

ersomnel (KMP)

Rajvirendra Singh (Independent Director)

“Tanual Raju Sonawane (Director) upto 12-12-2022

Soniya Bhatia (Independent Directon) w.e.1 28-12-
2022

Vinod Narsale (CFO)

PV Vinod (Director : CO0) w.e.f 12-12-2022

Priyanka Pandey (CS) from 21.10.2021

Mahipal Chauhan (CS) upto 30.09.2021

100% Holding Company in India

Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Wholly owned Subsidiary in India

erti Institute India Private Limited

Wholly owned Subsidiary in Tndia

certi Tutorial India Private Limited

Relative of Director’s

angeeta Sonawane

Sonawane

onawane

onawane

Nile

Kisan Sonawane

Raju Sonawane

Note: Related parties have been identified by the.
Details of with_related parties as on 31st March, 2023 :-

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited | Keerti Institute India | Keerti Tutorial India

Private Limited Private Limited

Non Current : Loans And Advances 7.40 - -
Non Current : Long Term N - 740
Revenue from N 32426 -
Other Income-Interest on Loan 35.14) - -
Other Current Asset:
Advance 34.2 - -
Other Current Financial Liabilities
Advance 34.20
Finance charges Interest on loan - 19.65 15.49
Payment to key Management Personnél
to directors

‘Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing 36.0 -
Director) -
Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12-12-2022 262 518
Royalty 3242 - N
Salary

antosh Sonawan 20 N -
Tanul Sonawane 0.64 - -
Vaishali Nile - 270 -
Vinod Narsale 9. - -
PV Vinod 15.0 - -
Nutan Sonawane N 142 -
Privanka Pande; 43 - -
Rent
Sudhakar Sonawane 201 546 136
Sangeeta Sonawane 201 546 136
Kisan Sonawane - 1.65 -
Raju Sonawane - 2.00 -
Sitting fees
Archana Sanjay Saini 0.1 N -
Manish Heeralal Chandak 0.1 - -
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 02 - -
‘Tanul Raju Son: 0.13 - -
Sonia Bhatia 0.0 - -

Balance Outstanding as on 31st March, 2

23

Particulars

Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Keerti Tutorial India
Private Limited

Keerti Institute India
Private Limited

Payable
Share Capital - 1.00] 1.00)
Rent - 19.15 848
133 0.60] -
33 0.08 -
0.2 - -
Interest Payable - 77.63 4297
Advances Payable - 3420
Loans & Advances - 32149 25437
Interest Receivable 120.6( - -
Advances Receivable 34.2 N N
Non Current Investment 2 N N
Loans & Advances SS18¢ - -

Details of with_related partie:

s as on 31st March, 2022 -

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Keerti Tutorial India
Private Limited

Keerti Institute India
Private Limited

Non Current : Loans And Advances 86.4¢ - -
Non Current : Long Term - 4922 3721
Revenue from i - 12138 -
Other Income-Interest on Loan 320 - -
Finance charges Interest on loan - 1858 13.45
Payment to key Management Personn
to directors

Sudhakar Sonawane (Joint Managing 12,0 -
Director) -
Pandurang Patekar (Director) upto 12-12-2022 39 221
Indirect Expenses
Royalt 12138 N -
Salary
Santosh Sonawane 29 - -
Nutan Sonawane - 247 -
Vaishali Nile - 1.98 -
Vinod Narsale 6.1 - -
PV Vinod &1 - -
Mahipal Chauhan 2.0, - -
Privanka Pande 1 - -
Rent
Sudhakar Sonawane 186 496 124

ingeeta Sona 186 496 124
Kisan Sonawane - 1.80
Raju Sonawane - - 225
Sitting fees
Archana Sanjay Saini 01 - -
Manish Heeralal Chandak 01 - -
Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit 0.1 - -
“Tanul Raju Sonawan 01 N 5

Balance Outstanding as on 31st March, 2

22

Particulars

Keerti Knowledge and Skills Limited

Keerti Institute India
Private Limited

Keerti Tutorial India
Private Limited

Payable
Share capital 1.00] 1.00]
Rent 37 9.92 248
22 0.20] -
Salary 14 0.20] -
Sitting fees 05 - -
Interest Payable 61.93 20.03
Loans & Advances - 32149 24697
Interest Receivable 90.9
Non Current Investment 2, N N
Loans & Advances 574.4¢ - -

Note 33: SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company's business activity falls within a

single reportable busi

s segment, viz, Information Technology.



Annexure "A"

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

Variance in %

A) Current Ratio
Current Assets
Current Liabilities

B) Debt Equity Ratio
Debt
Total Shareholders Equity

C) Debt Service Coverage Ratio
EBITDA less Other Income
Total Debts

D) Return Equity Ratio
Net Profir after tax
Total Shareholders Equity

E) Inventory turnover ratio *
COGS
Average Inventory

F) Trade Receivable turnover ratio
Revenue from Operation
Average Trade receivable

G) Trade payable turnover ratio
Purchase
Average Trade payable

H) Net Capital turnover ratio
Revenue from Operation
Total Shareholders Equity

1) Net Profir Ratio
Net Profir after tax
Total Revenue

J) Return on capital employed
EBIT less Other Income
Total Assets- Current Liabilites

466.52 348.39 608.56
113.34 121.31 127.69
4.12 2.87 4.77
512.79 382.50 794.87
143.51 -383.11 -412.53
130.29 -412.34 -361.70
512.79 382.50 794.87
25.41% -107.80% -45.50%
3.60 4.77 8.59
830.24 491.00 123.18
305.67 331.04 471.13
2.72 1.48 0.26
24.55 30.21 23.82
830.24 491.00 123.18
512.79 382.50 794.87
1.62 1.28 0.15
130.29 -412.34 -361.70
855.63 491.62 127.55
15.23% -83.87% -283.56%
106.36 -413.98 -373.81
512.79 382.51 794.87
20.74%) -108.23% -47.03%

43%

0%

-124%

83%

26%

-118%

-119%

* As the company is in the services industry therefore there will be no inventory




Note No 34 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current-non current classification of assets and liabilities.

Note No 35 :Micro and Small Enterprises

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Amount due to vendor - -

a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon - -

b) the amount of interest paid - -

¢) the amount of interest due and payable - -

d) the amount of interest accured and remaining unpaid - -

e) the amount further interest remaining due and payable - -

Note No 36 : Other Statutory Information
1) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.
ii) The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company
for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.
iii) There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as survey or
survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.
iv) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period.
v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
vii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any banks / financial institution or government or any government authority.
viii) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets during the current year or
previous year.
ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies
(Restrictions on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
x) The Company has not obtained any term loans from banks and financial institution during the year.
xi) The Company does not have any transactions and outstanding balances during the current as well previous year with Companies struck off
under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Note No 37 : Ratio : As per " Annexure A"

Note No 38 : Figures of the previous year have been regrouped, reclassified and/or rearranged whenever necessary to compare with the
figures of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Broad of Directors
N K Mittal & Associates Keerti Knowledge And Skills Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 113281W

CA N K Mittal Mr. Mehroof Manalody Mr. Sudhakar Sonawane
Partner Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership No. 046785

Mr. Vinod Narsale Ms. Priyanka Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, April 25th , 2023 Mumbai, April 25th , 2023
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